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Key Data on

IMMOFINANZ AG

2007/08

Change in %

2006/07

Revenues in EUR mill.

Results of operations (EBITDA)

Operating profit (EBIT) in EUR mill.

Earnings before tax (EBT) in EUR mill.

Gross cash flow in EUR mill.

Return on equity (ROE) in %

Return on capital employed (ROCE)? in %
Equity in EUR mill. (including minority interest)
Equity as a % of the balance sheet total

Equity ratio in % (based on contracted investments)
Balance sheet total in EUR mill.

Book value per share in EUR

Net asset value per share in EUR

15,568.4
9.47
11.55

Number of properties

Thereof investments in other companies?

Lettable space in sqm

Thereof investments in other companies?

Fair value of properties in EUR mill. (including contracted investments)
Thereof investments in other companies?

13,384,452
2,976,004
18,240.2
1,759.2

11,316,479
2,282,344
16,281.9
1,688.8

Earnings per share (basic) in EUR

Price/earnings ratio

Share price at end of period in EUR

Number of shares in mill.

Market capitalisation at end of period in EUR mill.

1) NOPAT (net operating profit after tax) in relation to capital employed.

2) Investments in other companies include associates consolidated at equity and holdings
recorded as financial instruments in accordance with IAS 39.

3,254.3



Increase of 46.7%
in gross cash flow

in EUR million

2004/05 2005/06  2006/07  2007/08

The steady continuation

of the company’s investment
strategy and active asset
management supported

an increase of 46.7%

in gross cash flow to

EUR 248.8 million for the
2007/08 financial year.

Net asset value and

share price
in EUR

Net Asset Value per share in EUR
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2005/06  2006/07  2007/08

Foreign exchange effects and
market developments led

to in part significant fluctua-
tions in income from the
revaluation of properties,
but net asset value per share
rose by 6.5% to EUR 11.55
based on an unchanged
number of shares. This is
contrasted by a closing

price of EUR 7.1 per
IMMOFINANZ share

as of 30 April 2008.

Increase of 29.3%
in revenues

in EUR million

2004/05 2005/06  2006/07  2007/08

Strong growth in all sectors
supported a 32.3% rise in
rental income to EUR 501.3
million. In combination

with the charge out of operat-
ing costs and other income,
this led to an increase

of 29.3% in revenues to

EUR 670.8 million.

Improvement of
31.5% in results of
operations (EBITDA)

in EUR million

2004/05 2005/06  2006/07  2007/08

The changed operating
environment triggered a
42.0% decline in EBIT to
EUR 514.5 million for the
reporting year, but EBITDA
rose by 31.5% to EUR 301.4
million — which underscores
the stable earning power of
IMMOFINANZ operations.
Financial results rose to
EUR 40.8 million, supported
by strong growth in the share
of profit from associated
companies.



Full Coverage of the
Value Added Chain

'''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''' &I Real Estate Asset ManagementAG
Property asset management
100% 100% 100%

IMMOBILIEM MAMAGEHENT
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CREDOD IMMOBILIEN KAPTTALAMLAGE GMDH

Development Development Brokerage, Facility and property Property funds
valuation management

On 30 June 2008, IMMOFINANZ and IMMOEAST acquired (with the consent of the extraordinary general meetings in July 2008) the prop-
erty division of Constantia Privatbank. The related property activities and subsidiaries were demerged to form 1&I Real Estate Manage-
ment AG, with IMMOFINANZ holding 40% and IMMOEAST 60% of the new company. This step means that both companies now cover
the entire value added chain in the property business. A detailed description of these developments can be found on page 27ff.
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Report by the
Executive Board

Karl Petrikovics, Chief Executive Officer Daniel Riedl, Member of the Executive Board

Dear Shareholders,

The 2007/08 financial year was undoubtedly a mixed one for IMMOFINANZ. Disappointments
include the highly unsatisfactory performance of the share price, which, after 16 successful years on
the stock exchange, was all the more surprising — certainly no less so to management than to many
of our long-term shareholders.

31.5% increasein  On the plus side, this was countered by the quite positive business developments made by
results of operations (EBITDA)  IMMOFINANZ. The uncertainty on the international financial markets and the associated global
economic downturn did not completely pass IMMOFINANZ by. However, IMMOFINANZ’s
strategy of diversification successfully withstood this challenge. The inherent value of the share
rose by 6.5%, while the results of operations (EBITDA) and revenues increased 31.5% and 29.3%
respectively.

Key strategic developments At the operative level, all three regional subsidiaries reached important strategic goals:
inallthree segments e [n Austria, the BUWOG/ESG Group successfully completed its consolidation process and is
now pursuing a clear expansion strategy. In the 2008/09 financial year, projects involving
640 apartments will be started, and a project in Poland has heralded the company’s
expansion to foreign markets.

e IMMOWEST’s investments continue to focus on the German logistics market. The
subsidiary Deutsche Lagerhaus now holds a portfolio containing almost one million square
metres of floor space.

e IMMOEAST has seamlessly switched its investment focus from standing properties to
investments in development projects. 63.3% of new investments over the reporting period
were made in this segment.
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Christian Thornton, Member of the Executive Board Michael Wurzinger, Member of the Executive Board

Yet as important as these positive developments are for the future outlook of the company, the most
important strategic measure was implemented after the end of the reporting period. The company’s
profitability is set to rise in the wake of the acquisition of Constantia Privatbank’s property division
and the associated internalisation of management. The acquisition of new subsidiaries, such as the
property and facility management company IMV and estate agents CPB Immobilientreuhand, also
mean that IMMOFINANZ has become an integrated real estate corporation with complete cover-
age of the entire value added chain in all sectors of the property industry.

Extending the range of services in this manner brings two distinct advantages: Integrating the
newly acquired property service providers will result in great benefits concerning the management
of the company’s portfolio, and, at the same time, open up a number of attractive new business
opportunities for IMMOFINANZ.

IMMOFINANZ’s new structure places it in a unique and exceptional position amongst Europe’s
largest listed property companies, and we are confident that this competitive advantage will result
in rising profits and ultimately an increase in the share price.

%ﬁ/m‘ MLQM« \owlon \

Karl Petrikovics Daniel Riedl Christian Thornton Michael Wurzinger
Chief Executive Officer Member of the Member of the Member of the
Executive Board Executive Board Executive Board



Milestones of the
2007/08 Business Year

Capltal increase In May 2007 the subsidiary IMMOEAST concluded the largest capital increase to date by a listed
by IMMOEAST  property company in Europe. New shares worth EUR 2.835 billion were issued at a subscription
Subsidiary price of EUR 10.20 each. IMMOFINANZ participated in the capital increase, thereby retaining

its majority stake

Convertible bond 1 November 2007 IMMOFINANZ successfully issued a convertible bond with a volume of

with a volume of EUR 750 million. The issue was offered solely to institutional investors and was considerably over-

EUR 750 million subscribed. The interest rate on the bond is 1.25% p.a., the conversion price EUR 9.26. The term
of the bond is ten years.

First dividend m September 2007 an overwhelming majority of shareholders at the annual general meeting of

paym ent in the IMMOFINANZ approved the proposal of the Executive Board for the first payment of a dividend.

’ : The dividend was 33 cents per share, the payment took place in October 2007. Based on the share

company’s hlStOry price at the end of the financial year, the dividend yield was 4.65%. The Executive Board indi-
cated that dividends are also to be paid in the future whenever possible.

Expansion of the

IMMOEAST investment portfolio

Property developers in which IMMOEAST holds strategic stakes have launched numerous
important new projects:

O ERN AN AN RS CLEPERA) has taken important steps to expand in Russia. Urban

development projects with an investment volume of more than EUR 1 billion were agreed
with the St. Petersburg city administration, a stake in the Mozaika shopping centre project
was acquired in Moscow, and a 50% stake was acquired in the leading Russian developer
Torgoviy Kvartal.

L S I EI R Y G @A EIGEY (IMMOEAST stake 33.85%) is presently working on

33 projects with about 21,500 flats. The conditions under which funds managed by the invest-
ment banks Lehman Brothers and Morgan Stanley acquired stakes in a private placement show
that the value of the IMMOEAST stake acquired in April 2007 has considerably risen.

e Furthermore, in the fourth quarter of 2007/08 a 50% stake in the [Tl RIEN
P was acquired. Caterata is currently carrying out projects encompassing
4,500 freehold flats in which EUR 600 million is being invested. The vigorously growing com-
pany will massively increase its presence throughout the region, proceeding from its current
market focus of Romania. Plans call for the start of construction on seven projects between the
third quarter of 2008 an the first quarter of 2009.

e |nRussia ajoint venture was concluded with the prominent property [e{S%(e]olIgIB
The first project planned is the construction of a shopping centre in St. Petersburg. Completion
is slated for 2009.



Beginning in the second quarter of 2007/08 the stake in IMMOEAST was gradually increased.
Starting at 50.46% at the end of July 2007, the stake rose to 54.63% by the end of the financial
year. Altogether 34.7 million shares were acquired. An additional 95,000 shares were acquired by
31 July 2008 after the reporting period, the stake of IMMOFINANZ in IMMOEAST thereby
increasing to 54.64%.

BUWOG has launched an accelerated strategy of expansion since the successful organisational
integration of the affiliate ESG. A series of major new projects was launched, particularly in
the greater region of Vienna. This includes residential facilities with rental and freehold flats
and several terraced housing
projects. In the 2008/09 fi-
nancial year construction
will begin on projects for a
total of 640 flats as well
as on the geriatric centre in
the Heller factory with 270
beds, making BUWOG one
of Vienna’s leading develop-
ers. The first international
project was also launched in
Poznan (Poland).

IMMOFINANZ continues to expand
its garage business in the east. The
subsidiary WIPARK has more than
doubled its investment in Hungary
with three new projects and a total of
984 parking places. The company now
has five garages and two garage
projects with a total of 1,747 parking
places under construction, owning
four and operating three of them.
WIPARK is thus the biggest interna-
tional garage operator in Hungary.

Milestones 2007/08

Increase of the
stake in IMMOEAST

BUWOG speeds
up development
of new residential
schemes

Considerable
expansion

of WIPARK in
Hungary



Acquisition of
City Box

Completion of the
Lenbachgdrten
urban development
project

Deutsche
Lagerhaus grows
to nearly

1 million sgm

IMMOFINANZ Annual Report 2007/08

In May 2007 an important step was
taken in the development of the self-
storage business (letting small segments
of private storage areas). In the Nether-
lands 90% of the self-storage company
City Box was taken over. City Box cur-
rently operates 21 facilities with approx-
imately 69,000 sqm of storage space in
the environs of the country’s big cities.
Within three years another ten centres
are to be built, to some extent also out-
side the Netherlands.

Between summer of 2007 and the end of the
year the four building segments of the multi-
functional urban development project Len-
bachgirten in Munich were handed over to
their tenants. 100% of the 65,000 sqm of usable
space is let to prominent international groups
for the long term. Two office properties are
used by the major US publishing house Condé
Nast, one by the consulting giant McKinsey.
The Rocco Forte hotel chain operates a five-star
plus establishment with 160 rooms in Lenbach-

girten. With an investment volume of EUR 228
million Lenbachgirten is the IMMOFINANZ
regional holding IMMOWEST’s biggest devel-
opment project to date.

The logistics subsidiary Deutsche Lagerhaus syste-
matically continued its strategy of expansion in the
2007/08 financial year. Seven properties with total
usable space of 164,000 sqm were acquired, while
several objects were further expanded. The com-
pany’s portfolio now encompasses more than 30
properties with approx. 900,000 sqm in Germany
and Switzerland. The target specified with the ac-
quisition of Deutsche Lagerhaus of expanding the
portfolio to one million sqm within three years is
likely to be reached considerably faster.



The subsidiary IMMOEAST’s STOP.SHOP retail park chain expanded its network in Central and
Eastern Europe with the opening of 12 additional centres. By the end of the financial year 23 STOP.
SHOP retail parks were in operation in four countries. The current development programme plans
an increase to 120 locations by
2011. The total investment vol-
ume for this is EUR 1.55 billion.

In the 2007/08 financial year
IMMOEAST sold five properties
and stakes in properties for a to-
tal of EUR 250 million. The sale
prices significantly exceeded the
respective appraisal values. Stakes
were sold in the Haabersti resi-
dential project (Tallinn) and the
Olympia (Olomouc) and Palladi-
um (Prague) shopping centres as
well as the Andel Park B (Prague) and
7 Salzburg Center (Warsaw) office
properties.

In July 2007 the GoodZone shopping
centre project with 146,000 sqm of
total usable space was acquired in
Moscow. Like the considerably larger
project Rostokino (241,000 sqm) there
is very strong demand on the part of
potential tenants and long before com-
pletion 50% of the space had already
been let in advance.

Milestones 2007/08

6 |

Expansion of the
STOP.SHOP retail
park chain

Realisation of
profits at
IMMOEAST

B
Major shopping
centres in Moscow
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Portfolio Development Investments and Portfolio

Portfolio Development

After launching numerous development projects in the last few years as part of a comprehensive ~ Continued pursuit of
investment strategy, the focal point of activities in 2007/08 was placed on the implementation of developrnent projects
these development projects. New investments were made only to a small extent and, consequently, started in earller years

the group’s property assets increased less than in previous years.

During the reporting year investments of EUR 1,622.7 million were made in new acquisitions and
development projects as well as the expansion and refurbishment of existing properties. As of
30 April 2008 projects with a total volume of EUR 6,890.0 million were under construction or
development.

New investments included projects for a total volume of EUR 1,625.8 million. Of these 77.2% was  New investments total
accounted for by IMMOEAST, 6.3% by IMMOAUSTRIA and 16.5% by IMMOWEST. At the EUR1,625.8 million
same time 32 properties and investments in property companies and 175 flats were sold for a total

of EUR 432 million.

The number of new rental agreements concluded during the financial year was satisfactorily high:
Adjusted rental income (i.e. based on objects owned by IMMOFINANZ during the previous finan-
cial year) rose by 5.1% over 2006/07.

Christian Thornton, member of the Executive Board of IMMOFINANZ AG

“The balanced IMMOFINANZ portfolio
generates stable cash flows, and thereby
also supports the continued growth of

the company — even in times of turbulence
on capital markets.”

The changing business climate and resulting shift in the general mood on international capital mar-
kets have had a massive influence on the operating environment for listed property companies.

It has become extremely difficult to raise equity and, for this reason, internal financing through
the income generated by the property portfolio is now more important than ever. In this respect,
IMMOFINANZ has a very sound position.

And this position is supported by a number of factors: The major subsidiaries — BUWOG/ESG
and WIPARK in the IMMOAUSTRIA segment — are typical “cash cows” just like the substantial
residential property holdings of IMMOWEST and the IMMOWEST subsidiary Deutsche Lagerhaus.

IMMOEAST, the largest of the three regional holding companies, can easily finance its high share
of development projects from internal funds because of the capital increase carried out at the start
of the 2007/08 financial year.
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Investments and Ongoing Projects

IMMOEAST
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Zebra Tower

(previously Rondo Jazdy Polskiej — Warsaw)
Construction began after the end of the finan-
cial year for this office building with a total of
approx. 20,000 sgm of lettable space in the
centre of the Polish capital. The 50% subsidiary
S+B CEE is developing the property. Negotia-
tions to let most of the space are already well
advanced one year prior to completion (end of
2009). Rondo Jazdy Polskiej has benefited from
the dramatic rise in the scarcity of space and
the considerable hike in rents in Warsaw’s cen-
tral business district.

Equator (Warsaw)

In spring 2008 the first building phase was completed
for the Equator office project, in which IMMOEAST
holds a stake of 51%. 100% of the 20,000 sqm of usable
space has been let, and the next building phase for
this 125,000 sqm project has already begun.

Debowe Tarasy (Katowice)

The first building phase of this residential project
located near IMMOEAST’s Silesia City Center
shopping centre was finished in July 2008. All
249 flats were sold prior to completion, and 50%
of the 260 flats to be constructed during phase
two (completion in summer 2008) have also been
sold. This project will generate an approx. 35%
return on investment for IMMOEAST.

Brno Business Park (Brno)

With 32,000 sqm of total usable space in one of
the mostimportant office centres of the southern
Moravian city of Brno, the Brno Business Park
was completed in autumn 2007. This Category A
office property enjoys considerable demand
and has already attracted a large number of
prominent tenants.

E
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The Gold Plaza (Baia Mare, Romania) Shopping Centre

IMMOEAST acquired 80% of the Gold Plaza shopping centre in
the 150,000-resident town of Baia Mare during the first quarter
of the financial year. With 43,000 sqm of usable space, the ob-
ject will be completed in the fourth quarter of 2009, after which
the purchase of the remaining shares will take place. At the end
of the 2007/08 financial year the pre-let level totalled 30%.

Atrium Park (Budapest)

In Budapest’s Pest district on Vaci Ut the 56,000 sqm
Atrium Park (lettable space of 38,200 sqm) was ac-
quired in autumn 2007 just prior to completion. Start-
ing from a pre-let level of 40% at the time of the pur-
chase, 86% of the first building segment was leased
primarily to government offices before its completion
in the first quarter of 2008.

Investments and Ongoing Projects

e
;

Eurobusiness Park (Budapest)

Consisting of the Camel Park, Shark Park and
Pharma Park segments, IMMOEAST’s logistics
flagship in Hungary with 70,000 sqm of usable
space increased its occupancy rate to 86% as a
result of several medium-sized new lets, thereby
remaining one of the most successful logistics
properties in the greater region of the Hungarian
capital.

Investments and Portfolio

CSOB-Portfolio (Prague)

After the scheduled relocation of various divi-
sions of CSOB, the renovation and expansion
work began on the CSOB portfolio properties
(seven properties with 41,000 sqm of total usable
space) that were acquired in 2006 in the centre of
Prague. These objects will be converted for an-
other use at an investment volume of just under
EUR 150 million. An upscale shopping centre will
be built on the Na Prikope, for example, while
other inner city properties will be refurbished as
hotels.
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Euromall Shopping Center (Pitesti) Expansion of the IRIDE Business Park (Bucharest)

The brand new Euromall shopping centre was also acquired in 2007 inthe  The acquisition of a 42,000 sqm piece of land formed the
booming industrial and university town of Pitesti for EUR 87 million. It en-  basis for the comprehensive expansion of the successful
compasses 120 shops and restaurants as well as a cinema and entertain-  IRIDE Business Park project (currently 90,000 sqm let in full
ment area on 32,000 sqm and is located close to the city centre. The to prominent companies such as Raiffeisen, Nestle and
shopping centre benefits from the large catchment area with its 480,000 Whirlpool). Up to 170,000 sqm of office space will be built in
inhabitants. the expansion area in several phases.

Logistics Centre in Timisoara

The first building segment of
an 18,000 sgm logistics hall in
Timisoara was completed with
an Austrian property develop-
er. When the logistics centre
is finished it will encompass
54,000 sqm of usable space.

Global City Pipera (Bucharest)

The Pipera development project was launched
in the Bucharest district of Pipera. The project
will be carried out in the scope of a co-invest-
ment IMMOEAST stake: 19%) together with the
Global Emerging Property Fund, in which IMMO-
EAST holds a 25% stake. In autumn 2007 con-
struction began for phase one totalling 49,000
sqm of office space and 7,700 sqm of retail
space as well as 844 parking spaces. Phase S-Park (Bucharest)

two, in which 381 flats will be built, was started  The S-Park office and retail property with 45,000 sqm of total usable
in March 2008. Completion of phase one is space was acquired for EUR 101.5 million. This property has been let to
scheduled for April 2009, phase two is to be renowned international groups such as ING, SAP, Goodyear, Johnson &
handed over in December 2009. Johnson, Heineken and Wrigley.




Investments and Ongoing Projects Investments and Portfolio

Completion of the Polus Center (Cluj)

The Polus Center shopping centre in the north-western city of Cluj was
opened in autumn 2007. With 100,000 sqm of usable space and an
investment volume of EUR 240 million, it is IMMOEAST’s largest
project in Romania to date and the first shopping centre of this cate-
gory outside the Romanian capital. The Polus Center is let in full to
Carrefour, Mango, Zara, Reebok, Adidas, Sony and others.

NordEst Logistic Park/Pantelimon Logistics Centre (Bucharest) Armonia Center (Arad)

The 53,000 sqm logistics project Pantelimon Warehouse was acquired in ~ The Armonia shopping centre with
the Bucharest district of Pantelimon. Completion of the first building seg- 43,000 sqm of usable space was
ment (17,250 sqm) took place in July 2008 and 38% of the space is already  acquired in summer 2007 in the
let. Pantelimon Warehouse is a part of a large-scale cooperative venture ~ western Romanian city of Arad. The
with a renowned development firm. A total of 400,000 to 500,000 sqm of investment volume was EUR 78 mil-
logistics space are to be built in ten locations all over Romania. lion. In May 2008 the shopping cen-
tre was opened at an occupancy
rate of 100%. Among its prominent
tenants are leading international
retailers such as Carrefour, the
French building market chain Brico
Store, Intersport, the perfumery
chain Sephora and fashion shops
such as Orsay and Lee Cooper.

Property Sales

Two properties and three stakes in property holdings were sold during the reporting year. The
fair value determined by external experts was exceeded by an average of 8.5%. These transac-
tions generated total proceeds of EUR 250 million.

LA CILE N HERTBR This 23,000 sqm office property, 100% of which is let to renowned
companies for the long-term, was sold to an international property fund for EUR 71.5 million.

IMMOEAST had acquired the property in autumn 2005.

LIRELA NS SUEIEEIDA [ n the Mokotow district IMMOEAST developed and let this
office property, which was sold in April 2008. The Salzburg Center was completed in 2007.

L EL T RS oY o ol I PRI CH (R ELIR IMMOEAST acquired a stake in this 60,000 sqm

retail and office centre project in the centre of Prague during 2000. The object had obtained
a series of top international firms as tenants prior to completion, and was sold during the
reporting year.

IO\ T ER ale ool - eI la R (Ol e oS B The Olympia shopping centre with more than 30,000 sqm

of usable space has been fully let for years and is the most important shopping centre in the
region. IMMOEAST therefore realised a significant increase in value on its sale.

L EL L SN A e A E N (I AR QENIDR This project, in which 800 flats will be built, was

sold to one of the largest Finnish construction and property development groups. IMMOEAST
owned a stake of 45% in the project company, which was established together with a British
residential building group and a local developer.
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The Cherno More shopping centre (Varna)

In the Bulgarian Black Sea port of Varna, a joint
venture for the construction of a shopping
centre with 58,000 sqm of lettable space was
established with a leading international devel-
oper. Construction on the Cherno More project
will begin in autumn 2008. Completion is plan-
ned for 2010.

The Novi Sad shopping centre
IMMOEAST acquired a stake in a project to develop a 31,900 sqm
shopping centre in Novi Sad, the capital of the Serbian province
of Vojvodina. Construction will begin in the middle of 2009. Com-
pletion is planned for the beginning of 2011.

Baneasa Airport Tower (Bucharest)

94% of the Baneasa Airport Tower, which has
been fully owned by IMMOEAST since the end of
2007, is now let. The tenants include Hyundai,
Tetra Pak and Arabesque. Total usable space is
nearly 10,000 sqm.

Grand Center (Zagreb)

The Grand Center, IMMOEAST’s first office complex in
Zagreb, has continued to develop into one of the most
successful business properties in the Croatian capital.
With lettable space of 15,900 sqm, the occupancy rate in
the architecturally sophisticated building has increased
t0 97.5%.




Investments and Ongoing Projects Investments and Portfolio

GoodZone shopping centre (Moscow)

Construction on the GoodZone shopping centre in Moscow
progressed considerably in 2007/08. The opening will take
place in the first half of 2009. This project has 146,000 sqm
of usable space. At the end of the reporting period 54%
of the space was let and term sheets had been signed for
another 19%.

Luna Park (Kiev)

In the Ukrainian capital of Kiev IMMOEAST will realise the
Luna Park office project as part of a 50% stake in a joint
venture acquired in autumn 2007. 85,000 sqm of usable
space will be builtin three phases. The first phase will begin
in the first quarter of 2009. The total investment volume will
reach EUR 250 million.

Tomilino logistics park (Moscow)

In autumn 2007 construction began
on the Tomilino development project
near Moscow. The 53,000 sqm logis-
tics park was completed shortly after
e = . the reporting period. The proximity to
Rostokino shopping centre existing excellent logistics centres

The Rostokino megaproject with 241,000 sqm of usable space that have been let is an important
has already become a great success 1.5 years prior to completion, advantage to this location, in which
with 50% of the space pre-let by the end of the 2007/08 financial IMMOEAST has invested EUR 60 mil-
year. Negotiations with leading international retail chains are cur- lion. Tomilino will be completed in
rently underway for the remaining areas. August of 2008 and is now fully let.

The takeover by IMMOEAST is sched-
uled for the end of September 2008.
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Simmeringer Hauptstrasse 49 office property
(Vienna)

In October 2007 the major project at Simmeringer
Hauptstrasse 49 was successfully completed. The
16,000 sqm of usable space, 85% of which is offices
and 15% retail space, were let in full at the time of
opening. The property benefits from its link to the
underground network and its convenient location
between the city centre and the airport.

i Bl

The Heller residential park (Vienna)

In autumn 2007 BUWOG began building
the Heller residential park in Vienna’s 10t
district. 250 flats are to be built here in an
attractive residential location. A public
private partnership (PPP model) will also
provide the framework for a geriatrics cen-
tre with 270 beds. Total usable space will
encompass 48,000 sgm. With an invest-
ment volume of more than EUR 100 million,
itis the largest project carried out by BUWOG
since its takeover by IMMOFINANZ.

IMMOFINANZ Annual Report 2007/08

Revitalisation at Dresdnerstrasse 108 (Vienna)
This 10,000 sqm office building was built in 1998
and is situated at an attractive and increasingly
important office location. An extensive upgrade
was completed in the third quarter of 2007/08,
and has led to strong demand on the part of poten-
tial tenants.

SelfStorage — Dein Lagerraum

Austria’s leading self-storage company, in which IMMO-
FINANZ holds a stake of 30%, has continued to grow. Dur-
ingthe financial year, SelfStorage — Dein Lagerraum opened
the biggest facility to date in Austria at the Gaudenzdorfer
Grtel as well as a new facility on the Hietzinger Kai. The
company now has a total of eight facilities in Austria, seven
of them in Vienna.

Rapid progress is also being made in Germany. At the end
of the 2007/08 financial year there were nine facilities in
operation, with an additional one in Switzerland. 16 new
facilities are in planning or under construction. Total space
is to increase to 168,000 sqm.

Cubino / Monte Laa (Vienna)

The major Monte Laa project on the Laaerberg in
Vienna’s 10th district was finished upon comple-
tion of the Cubino property (53 flats). BUWOG
owns a total of three residential properties with
217 flats in Monte Laa, all of which are let. The
company has invested EUR 38.3 million in Monte
Laa and profits from the enormous success of
this entirely new part of the city, which has been
built on a superstructure of the A23 motorway
(southeast tangent).

Schottenbastei office project (Vienna)

The thorough upgrade and expansion (three-floor
loft conversion) of an attractive older building was
begun at the Schottenbastei, one of Vienna’s best
city-centre locations. A total of 3,500 sqm of high-
quality office space is to be completed by the
middle of the 2008/09 financial year. Talks with
potential tenants are already in advanced stages.
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Successful Sales in Austria

O L S E RIS d i Ao g (e M AALIIEVA | n the first quarter of the reporting year,
The Attemsgasse 22 residential IMMOFINANZ concluded a plan for the sale of 17 residential investment properties. The
project (Vienna) excellent performance on the Vienna residential investment property market was utilised to
In Vienna's 221 district a project with sell a segment of the Group’s residential investment portfolio at very attractive conditions.
46 flats was launched by BUWOG. . R . . .. .
Completion is planned for November In addition to the favourable market situation, active management and the optimisation of
2008. The demand for these flats is  the residential investment property’s revenues contributed to a significant appreciation in
high and full occupancy is largely  the property’s value, generating prices in average 16% above the fair value determined by
expected upon completion. the external experts.

. L L EU S YAVAEIEE [N December 2007 the office building at Brauhausgasse

37 in Vienna’s 5th district was completed. The property has 6,600 sqm of usable space and
was well received by the market. 90% of the office space is now let. At the end of 2007 the
Brduhausgasse 37 property was sold at a substantial profit.

e Residential and office investment portfolio (Vienna and provincial capitals): IRNEUNEIRY
2008 a portfolio consisting of seven mix-used properties (three in Vienna, one each in

St. Polten, Linz, Salzburg and Graz) were sold. This transaction generated proceeds of

EUR 64.2 million, which is nearly 60% more than the purchase price paid in 2002. The return
on equity was 26.9% per annum.

In the 2007/08 financial year BUWOG sold 175 flats with 15,146 sqm
of usable space from its residential portfolio. The average price per square metre was

EUR 1,653, resulting in a considerable increase above book value. These sales resulted in
revenues totalling EUR 25 million.

The Poznan residential project (Poland)
BUWOG, a subsidiary of IMMOAUSTRIA, has
committed to its first international project. In
Poznan - after Warsaw one of the economically
most important cities in Poland with 580,000
inhabitants — a residential project thatincludes
470 freehold flats and 36,907 sqm of residen-
tial space will be carried out in cooperation
with a German developer. BUWOG owns a stake
of 50% in this joint project, which is scheduled
for completion for 2009.

WIPARK with three new garages

The garage operator WIPARK, a wholly owned
subsidiary of IMMOFINANZ, has further expand-
ed its activities in Hungary. In addition to the
existing four large garages in Budapest, an agree-
ment was signed for the operation of the Pollack-
Mihaly-tér-Garage (409 parking places). An under-
ground garage with 209 parking places was built
near the Budapest Castle. In Pecs another garage
with 285 parking places is under construction. Of
the seven WIPARK garages in Hungary, five have
been completed and two are under construction.
Four garages with approx. 1,100 parking places
are owned by WIPARK, while the company func-
tions as operator for three other facilities.

The Obstgarten residential complex (Vienna)

BUWOG’s Obstgarten residential complex in Vienna’s
11th district was completed in September 2007. This
particularly energy-efficient building is considered a
model ecological location. All 138 flats with 11,500 sqm
of total residential space are let.
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IMMOWEST

Friesenquartier, Gerling headquarters (Cologne)

The completion of the architecture competition marked a decisive step in IMMOFINANZ’s largest urban development project in
Germany to-date, the transformation of the Gerling insurance group headquarters into a “city within a city” that will include
offices, restaurants, luxury flats, a hotel, etc. The jury opted for the proposal of the renowned Cologne office Kister Scheithauer
Gross (ksg).
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Enlargement of residential portfolio (Berlin)
In November 2007 a residential portfolio in Berlin with
700 flats in the district of Spandau was acquired. The
residential complex was completely refurbished and has
an occupancy rate of 94%. IMMOFINANZ now owns a total
of 2,250 flats in the German capital.

Transfer of Lenbachgarten (Munich)

In the second half of 2007 the four building segments of the Lenbachgédrten urban development
project in Munich were handed over. 100% of the total usable space of 65,000 sqm is leased for the
long-term. The three office buildings were let to the major US publishing house Condé Nast and the
consulting group McKinsey for ten years. Another building segment was let for 30 years to the Rocco
Forte hotel chain, which operates The Charles luxury hotel at this location.
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DUS Plaza (Diisseldorf)

IMMOFINANZ has launched the DUS Plaza development project at
Diisseldorf Airport together with the developer Frankonia. The
office building will have 11,000 sqm of total usable space and be
finished in 2010. Part of the space was already let prior to the start
of construction.

CITY BOX (Netherlands)

The IMMOWEST subsidiary City Box fully realised its three-year expansion pro-
gramme during the first year and increased the existing portfolio from 14 to
21 locations with lettable space of 69,000 sqm in 2007/08. In the next few years
the portfolio is to be enlarged in a second phase of expansion to include a total
of 34 locations. Consequently, City Box has the best chances to become number
one on the self-storage market in the Netherlands.

Deutsche Lagerhaus

The logistics subsidiary Deutsche Lagerhaus made numerous acquisitions in the 2007/08 financial

year.

e In the Vaihingen district of Stuttgart, development started on a logistics centre with 47,700 sqm
of usable space. The property will be built in two phases to be completed in July and October
2008, respectively. 100% of the first building phase has been let to DSV Road Holding.

¢ Another logistics centre was acquired in Nuremberg. This object is located near an important
motorway junction and has a railway connection as well as 36,700 sqm of usable space.

¢ The development of a logistics centre in the city’s port was also started in Nuremberg. This prop-
erty will feature 32,600 sqm of usable space.

® A 21,200 sqm logistics centre was acquired in Freystadt in Bavaria. 100% of the property is let to
the Michelin tyre group. Freystadt is located on one of the main Bavarian roads between Munich
and Nuremberg.

¢ In Willich (NRW) the headquarters of the Bermes Group was acquired in the form of a sale-and-
lease-back transaction. All of the 21,178 sqm property will be used by Bermes for the long-term.

These extensive investments led to the considerable growth of the Deutsche Lagerhaus portfolio.
The number of properties rose from 22 to 29, with total usable space reaching 918,000 sqm at the
end of the year, up from 723,000 sqm in 2006/07. 27 properties with 825,823 are located in
Germany, the remainder in Switzerland. The target of reaching 1 million sqm of total usable space
has therefore largely been reached. The average occupancy rate for the properties in the portfolio
is 94%.
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Diversification
Long-term investment

Ever since its founding in 1990, diversification, long-term investment and an anti-cyclical investment
strategy have formed the three pillars of IMMOFINANZ’s corporate strategy. Combined with the
active management of the company’s property assets, they have been responsible for ensuring that
the property portfolio has performed significantly above average over an extended period of time.

IMMOFINANZ’s business model has undergone significant changes since the purchase of
Constantia Privatbank’s property activities in the first quarter of the 2008/09 financial year. This
acquisition has opened up new strategic opportunities for the company that will result in a signifi-
cant increase in profitability and entry into new business areas. The impact on IMMOFINANZ’s
strategic position is handled in this chapter; details of the transaction can be found in a separate
section on page 26ff.

Diversification

Diversification is a common principle of all IMMOFINANZ investment policies.

¢ Geographic diversification is ensured by the three regional subsidiaries IMMOEAST,
IMMOAUSTRIA and IMMOWEST. IMMOEAST is active in the booming markets
of Russia and South-Eastern Europe and the maturing markets of Central Europe;
IMMOAUSTRIA and IMMOWEST cover the established western markets, ensuring
a balanced combination of growth, profitability and stability.

* By covering all major property sectors (housing, retail, office, logistics, garages and to
a lesser extent hotels), the IMMOFINANZ portfolio is less susceptible to periodic
fluctuations in individual submarkets.

* IMMOFINANZ’s diversification strategy also includes different types of investments, such
as the acquisition of completed properties, participation in development projects and indirect
investments by means of takeovers and stakes in property enterprises.

Long-term Investment

IMMOFINANZ approaches all its investment activities from a long-term perspective. For this
reason, a long-term potential for appreciation and sustainable rental income are the most impor-
tant criteria governing acquisitions and development projects. This in turn results in investments
being focused on prime locations and Class A properties.

IMMOFINANZ’s long-term investment policy is however by no means a “buy and hold” strategy.
Properties whose income and market value have already been optimised can then be sold within
the scope of the company’s active asset management policy. Numerous properties and stakes held
by IMMOAUSTRIA and IMMOEAST were sold during the reporting period, resulting in signifi-
cant profits.
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Sustainable development
of the property portfolio

Complete value
added chain

Regional and sector
diversification of risk

Careful selection of
objects to safeguard value
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Active Asset Management

Wide-ranging measures  Intensively and diligently managing the property portfolio is a decisive factor for the long-term
to improve earnings  gyccess of IMMOFINANZ’s corporate strategy. Asset management includes a wide range of meas-
ures aimed at improving tenant structures, increasing occupancy rates, appreciation by means of

extensions and conversions etc.

IMMOFINANZ has a large and highly qualified team which manages over 3,000 properties held
by the company. A range of property service providers (which have become subsidiaries of IMMO-
FINANZ and IMMOEAST as a result of the acquisition of Constantia Privatbank’s property divi-
sion) also play a major role in the optimal management of the property portfolio and its resulting
appreciation.

Michael Wurzinger, member of the Executive Board of IMMOFINANZ AG

“With a painstaking attention to detail,
enormous commitment and motivation each
and every day, our asset management team

ensures that IMMOFINANZ also generates
above-average returns in difficult
market phases.”

Two factors are decisive for the success of the company: the best investments and the sale of
objects at the right time as well as the active management of the portfolio properties. Over the
short-run, the key factor is whether an acquisition is made at the right point in the market cycle —

over the long-term, the more important role is played by the increase in value that can be realised
through measures like the optimisation of the tenant structure, occupancy and types of use as well
as the expansion and modernisation of objects.

This strategy is illustrated above all by IMMOAUSTRIA, which covers the home market in Austria
and represents the oldest segment of business in the group. A highly motivated and highly quali-

fied team makes it possible for IMMOFINANZ to generate above-average results in good times as
well as more difficult market phases. This day-to-day work is essential to successfully implement
the strategy of a long-term property investor.




Active asset management
Internalisation of management

Internalisation of Management

After the reporting period, IMMOFINANZ acquired Constantia Privatbank’s property activities
together with its subsidiary IMMOEAST. This also included the internalisation of management,
meaning that IMMOFINANZ is no longer managed externally by Constantia Privatbank, but by
a joint subsidiary of IMMOFINANZ and IMMOEAST. Income from the existing management
contract is therefore now distributed to IMMOFINANZ. These structural changes secure
IMMOFINANZ’s full independence and will result in a significant increase in profitability. A
detailed description of the transaction and its impact on IMMOFINANZ can be found in the
following section on page 26ff of the annual report.

Entry into the Property Services Business

By acquiring Constantia Privatbank’s property activities, IMMOFINANZ has also become a
provider of property services. In particular, these services include:

e Management of property funds

e Construction of buy-to-let apartments

e Property development and construction management

e Property brokerage and valuations

e Property and facility management

These business areas will be managed by a joint subsidiary of IMMOFINANZ and IMMOEAST.
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Acquisition of property
segment from
Constantia Privatbank

Strong subsidiaries drive growth

IMMOFINANZ’s operating subsidiaries play an increasingly important role in the
corporation’s overall diversification and growth strategies. A significant share of
the company’s management capacity and employees are located here. The most

important operating subsidiaries are:

CIEISMLeIePA3YeR Housing subsidiary with around 32,000 apartments and total

floor space of 2.45 million sqm.

LRIAGE One of Austria’s leading garage operators with 11,656 parking spaces

in Austria and Hungary

LT AR EIER) Logistics specialist with a portfolio covering more than

900,000 sgm in Germany and Switzerland

CINEIA ] Self storage company in the Netherlands with 21 properties and

69,000 sgm of floor space.



Strategic
Measures

e Acquisition of the property segment from
Constantia Privatbank extends value added chain

¢ |nternalisation of management and
improvement in earning power
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Acquisition of the property division
from Constantia Privatbank

Acquisition of the property division from
Constantia Privatbank

IMMOFINANZ set the course for future developments in the first quarter of the 2008/09 financial
year. Together with its subsidiary IMMOEAST, IMMOFINANZ acquired Constantia Privat-
bank’s property division after the end of the reporting period on 30 June 2008.

This acquisition was made possible by the sale process involving Constantia Privatbank, which
involved the spin-off of the property division as I&I Property Management AG (I&I) and the sub-
sequent sale of this new company by the owners of Constantia Privatbank. This move provided
IMMOEAST with the unique opportunity to internalise its management (i.e. separating from
Constantia Privatbank and managing the company with its own staff), an option which had been
evaluated for some time within the scope of a comprehensive expansion of business activities.
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Together with IMMOEAST

Internalisation of
management

Karl Petrikovics, Chief Executive Officer of IMMOFINANZ AG

“The internalisation of management and the
acquisition of the Constantia Privatbank
property activities will allow us to realise
opportunities for cost savings and also
develop entirely new areas of business as
an additional source of earnings.”

IMMOFINANZ set a milestone for its future development with the internalisation of management
and its development into a fully integrated property company. This step expanded the company’s
proven concept of extensive geographical and sector diversification to include an added dimen-
sion — broadly diversified service activities. The core area of property investments will now be

complemented by the wide range of property services provided by the new subsidiaries, which
range from fund management to development, facility management, rentals and sales. As a result
of this expansion, IMMOFINANZ now has a stronger foundation to safeguard and expand its lead-
ing position among the listed property companies in the German-speaking countries and in Central
and Eastern Europe.

This strategic step will not only allow for the realisation of cost savings and subsequent direct
impact on operating earnings (EBITDA) — it will also create entirely new sources of income. With

this complete value added chain, IMMOFINANZ is well equipped to continue its successful growth
course.
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Approval by the extraordinary
general meeting in July

Bundling of activities in
1&I Real Estate Asset
Management AG
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IMMOFINANZ and IMMOEAST together acquired I&I for a combined purchase price of
EUR 440 million. The acquisition of the stakes was based on the relative sizes of the property
portfolios, with IMMOFINANZ taking over 40% of I&I and IMMOEAST 60%. IMMOFINANZ
paid a total of EUR 176 million for its stake. The purchase price included EUR 146 million for the
existing management contract and EUR 30 million for Constantia Privatbank’s remaining prop-
erty activities and subsidiaries.

Purchase Price for Constantia Privatbank’s Property Activities:

IMMOFINANZ management contract EUR 146 million
Share of other property activities and subsidiaries EUR 30 million
IMMOEAST management contract EUR 219 million
Share of other property activities and subsidiaries EUR 45 million
Management contract total IMMOFINANZ Growp) | EUR 365 million
Other property activities and subsidiaries EUR 75 million

The results of the negotiations between Constantia Privatbank and the management of IMMO-
FINANZ and IMMOEAST were put to extraordinary general meetings of both companies for a
final decision. This measure reflected the great importance of the transaction, despite there being
no legal obligation to obtain the approval of a general meeting.

This transaction will bring about a significant increase in the profitability of the entire IMMO-
FINANZ Group, with an estimated increase of EUR 80 million to EUR 100 million in EBITDA
during the first full year after the takeover of Constantia Privatbank’s property division. Earnings
per IMMOFINANZ share are set to rise by EUR 0.11 to EUR 0.14 as a result of the transaction,
and cash flow per IMMOFINANZ share by EUR 0.17 to EUR 0.20.

The annual general meeting held on 23 July 2008 in Vienna passed the resolution to acquire 40%
of Constantia Privatbank’s property division.

447 shareholders attended the extraordinary general meeting or were represented by proxy. The
proposal submitted by the Executive and Supervisory Boards was passed with a majority of 98.02%,
whereby 14 shareholders voted against the proposal.

The business areas and property service providers that are bundled in I&I include Constantia
Privatbank’s property asset management division as well as a number of powerful subsidiaries with
strong earnings, in particular IMV Immobilien Management und Verwaltung GmbH, CPB Immo-
bilien Kapitalanlage GmbH, Constantia Immobilien Development GmbH, CREDO Property AG



Acquisition of the property division
from Constantia Privatbank

and 49% of CPB Immobilientreuhand GmbH. These companies will now been integrated into the
IMMOFINANZ/IMMOEAST Group and form an important pillar in IMMOFINANZ’s corporate
strategy. By combining own property investment activities and comprehensive property services,
IMMOFINANZ (and IMMOEAST) have established an outstanding position amongst major
European listed property companies.

Property asset management

I&I currently manages property portfolios worth a total of EUR 21 billion. In addition to the
IMMOFINANZ and IMMOEAST property portfolios, this includes the Constantia property
investment fund portfolio as well as several thousand buy-to-let apartments.

The IMMOFINANZ Group has thus become one of Europe’s leading property asset managers.
This line of business is to be expanded strongly in the coming years. In addition to asset manage-
ment for its own investment products (see “Property funds and other property investments” below),
1&I will also assume the management of portfolios held by private and institutional investors and
thus offer the services formerly rendered by Constantia Privatbank’s “Property Family Office” on
a larger scale.

The large number of highly-qualified employees in the field of asset management and the cost
benefits gained from the volume of these combined managed property assets secure the IMMO-
FINANZ Group an excellent starting position in this profitable business area.

Property funds and other property investments

CPB Immobilien Kapitalanlage GmbH, which was acquired from Constantia Privatbank, manages
the Constantia Property fund, an open-end property fund under Austrian law that was launched
in 2004. Constantia Property achieved the best results of all Austrian property investment
funds in each year of its existence. As of 30 June 2008, the fund covered a property portfolio worth
EUR 149.9 million in Austria and Germany and a fund volume of EUR 142.9 million.

Constantia Real Estate will serve as the starting point for a new business area. In addition to
an open-end property fund focussing on Central and Eastern Europe that will be listed shortly,
CPB Immobilien KAG will concentrate on property funds primarily for institutional investors. The
development and management of property funds for institutional investors is to become the most
important new business area for the IMMOFINANZ Group in the medium term, due to the
potential for high earnings in this area.
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Property portfolio
of EUR 21 billion
under management

Highly qualified employees
as competitive advantage

Property fund with the best
performance in Austria

Expansion of property fund
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Extensive range of property
services strengthen fund
management

Expansion of activities in the
area of investment apartments

Leading property
broker in Austria

750 objects with 3.5 million
sqm of lettable space
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The strong market position of IMMOEAST in the CEE/SEE region and its long history of contacts
with major global property investors lead to expectations of particularly strong growth in the area
of Eastern European property funds. Furthermore, the ability of IMMOEAST to provide a com-
prehensive range of property services (development, letting, administration; see below) within Cen-
tral and Eastern Europe represents a significant competitive advantage over other fund managers.

Plans also call for the expansion of the former Constantia Privatbank activities in the area of in-
vestment apartments following their transfer to the IMMOFINANZ Group. This category of
apartments is acquired by investors in order to generate stable, long-term and generally increasing
added income through rental. IMMOFINANZ now also offers a wide range of services for invest-
ment apartments, which includes planning, financing, construction management, rental and ad-
ministration.

Investment apartments are the most popular form of direct private property investment. As the
market leader, Constantia Privatbank has been able to place roughly 4,000 units in this segment.
The uncertainty on international financial markets and rising inflation have made investment apart-
ments even more attractive, a development that is underscored by rising demand among investors.

Property brokerage and valuation (CPB Immobilientreuhand GmbH)
A stake of 49% in CPB Immobilientreuhand was also acquired as part of the purchase of Constantia
Privatbank’s property division.

CPB Immobilientreuhand (68 employees) is Austria’s leading property agent with the highest mar-
ket share in the office and rental apartment sectors, having brokered 340,000 sqm in 2007. With
subsidiaries in Prague, Warsaw, Bratislava, Budapest and Bucharest, the company has established
a strong network across Central and Eastern Europe. A further subsidiary, CPB Immobilieninvest-
ment Consulting, recently began operations, specialising on the investment market and property
valuations. As the exclusive Austrian partner of Savills International, CPB is represented in more
than 200 cities across the globe.

Facility and property management

A further subsidiary acquired with the Constantia Privatbank’s property division is IMV Immo-
bilien Management und Verwaltung GmbH, a facility and property management firm that handles
750 properties and 3.5 million sqm of floor space, making it far and away the largest private
facility and property manager in Austria. IMV is active internationally through subsidiaries in
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Germany (Berlin, Munich, Cologne), Hungary, Czech Republic, Slovakia, Poland and Romania,
where it is experiencing high growth rates. IMV is distinguished by a modern and active approach
to property management, experiencing great success by reducing operating costs and contributing
significantly to the continual appreciation of the properties under its management. The company
has 198 employees.

Although the majority of IMV’s foreign activities are focused in Germany, the company’s highest
growth potential lies in Central Eastern and South-Eastern Europe, where the quality of facility
and property management is often far below western standards. While long-term cooperation often
lasting several decades is the norm for property management in mature markets, IMV has identified
a large number of potential customers in this region who are looking to switch property managers.

Property development

The property division acquired from Constantia Privatbank also includes two successful property
developers. Constantia Immobilien Development GmbH (CID) and CREDO Property AG work
together closely and are under common management.

Constantia Immobilien Development is primarily active in Austria. Its business focus is on the
development of buy-to-let apartments and structured property investment products as well as con-
struction management for these projects. Around 4,000 buy-to-let apartments have been developed
to date, complemented by a large number of structured property investment products. Above and
beyond this, activities in Central and Eastern Europe are continually being expanded. The com-
pany is currently handling development projects worth a total of around EUR 300 million. CID
has 16 employees.

CREDOQO is currently active in six countries in the form of its own development projects. The focus
is clearly on Central and Eastern Europe, with 33 projects in Poland, Czech Republic, Hungary,
Slovakia, Latvia and Germany with an investment volume of around EUR 400 million. CREDO
is active across all sectors, the current focus is on the retail and housing segments. CREDO is
mainly active under the name IRES on the Central and European markets.

A further important business area for CREDO is property asset management for Irish and Dutch
funds. The company has a total of 29 employees, a large portion thereof in subsidiaries in the six
countries with ongoing projects.
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Current focus
on Germany

33 projects with a total
volume of EUR 400 million
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The acquisition of the operating service companies will allow the IMMOFINANZ Group to
cover the complete value added chain:

I&| Real Estate Asset Management AG

Property asset management
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Development Development Brokerage, Facility and property Property funds
valuation management
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e Positive outlook for property markets in spite
of economic slowdown

e IMMOFINANZ profits from the different stages P
of development in its markets 2
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Negative effects of the
financial market crisis
in part offset

Financing shortage in Europe
leads to decline in new space

Top rents in Europe
Spring 2008
in EUR/sgm

Source: CPB Research

Vienna office market in
European comparison
Spring 2008,

Source: CPB Research
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Property Market

Overall, the market environment was positive throughout the 2007/08 financial year. Rental prices
and the rental of new space rose across all major markets in which IMMOFINANZ invests, and
vacancy rates have also fallen in many submarkets. These positive developments have at least par-
tially compensated for the negative effects of the global financial crisis, which has resulted in rising
yields in many property markets (which in turn leads to a decline in the value of properties).

The property markets did not suffer noticeably from the effects of slower economic growth and a
downgraded economic outlook in the second half of 2007 and the first half of 2008; forecasts by
leading market analysts regarding future developments are consequently optimistic across the
board. As financing new projects has become significantly more difficult in the wake of the credit
crisis, completions will also be lower than previously expected. In some submarkets, this effect will
be stronger than the fall in demand resulting from the economic downturn.
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IMMOAUSTRIA (Austria)

The Vienna office market, far and away the largest Austrian office market and the only one  Decline in the production of
of international significance, developed positively in all respects in 2007. New rentals reached ~ Nnew space, increase in rentals
340,000 sqm, a new all time record. At the same time, completions fell to only 190,000 sqm, the

lowest value since 2003. This has resulted in new rentals exceeding completions by an unprecedent-

ed 140,000 sqm.

State-of-the-art properties are primarily profiting from this development and are the subject of
most new leases. Older and technically inferior properties are suffering from companies’ increased
willingness to relocate. Vacated space is often difficult to let without comprehensive modernisation.

Average rents rose around 5% in 2007; prime rates rose by a similar amount from EUR 22 to 5% increase in average rents
23/sqm. As demand is extremely high for modern properties in the city centre where the highest

rents are received, and very little new space is coming onto the market in this area, prime rents

should continue to rise in 2008 and beyond.

The same applies to average rents, whereby the significant increase in the supply of space  High level of pre-letting
(250,000 sqm in 2008, an increase of around 30%) represents a certain unknown factor. However, ~ On new objects

one positive aspect is that new properties are generally subject to a large number of pre-rental

agreements, meaning that only a portion of the total space will actually come onto the market. In

general, hardly any major development projects are undertaken without being able to pre-let at least

50% of space.

Daniel Riedl, member of the Executive Board of IMMOFINANZ AG

“The stabilising influence of our strong
residential portfolio is demonstrated
above all in difficult economic times.”

Residential properties form the heart of the IMMOFINANZ portfolio with roughly one-third of total
space. And this is a very comforting fact, especially in times of economic uncertainty: the demand

for living space is generally independent of the turbulence on international financial markets and,
as a result, the high level of occupancy and development of fair value are accordingly stable. The
decisive factor for this success was the transformation of the BUWOG/ESG Group into a prosper-
ing, market-oriented company within record time after the privatisation.

However, residential properties in no way represent the “defensive” component of the portfolio.
The BUWOG/ESG Group has grown to become one of the leading residential property developers in

Austria. The numerous condominium development projects that are currently under realisation by
IMMOEAST and BUWOG in Central and Eastern Europe are among the most profitable investments
in the entire group.
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A, Vienna, Franzensgasse

Record top rents for
prime locations

Continuing trend to
higher demands on specialty
shopping centres

Development of prices for
freehold flats

in Vienna

Average and top quality

in EUR/sqm
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Prime rents for retail space also set new records. In the prime location of Kohlmarkt, rents of
EUR 300 / sqm have already become commonplace; rates for smaller spaces can even climb as high
as EUR 390 / sqm. In general, top locations such as the inner city and Mariahilferstrasse are the
big winners of the current price trends. Rents in some peripheral locations are falling, if such space
can be rented at all.

In the retail park segment, in which IMMOFINANZ is particularly strongly represented, the trend
towards higher quality continued into 2007. The classic retail park featuring basic but inexpensive
properties is coming under pressure; instead, value is being increasingly placed on appealing design,
comfortable parking spaces and other amenities such as covered pathways between shops.

The average size of the retail parks and consequently the number of shops is also rising. For this
reason, a consolidation of the industry with fewer, but larger retail parks is expected. Rents
remained largely stable in 2007 and at the beginning of 2008.



IMMOAUSTRIA
IMMOEAST

Rents in the housing market have been rising for some time, but increased by a far slower rate in
2008. According to the Austrian Federal Economic Chamber, average rents in Vienna rose by just
0.3%. Rents in the other provinces varied more noticeably, from +4.0% in Salzburg to -7.1% in
Burgenland. Rising operating costs have contributed to this development, which is also exerting
indirect pressure on the rents for new leases. Prices for freehold apartments, which reflect the
appreciation of properties, performed far more positively. Average prices in Vienna rose by 2.6%.

An analysis by submarket shows that prime locations are continuing to develop extremely
well. This applies in particular to Vienna’s central districts. Conversely, increased demand has
been registered for inexpensive housing, in particular properties that have already received public
funding.

IMMOEAST (Central, Eastern and South-Eastern Europe)

The property markets in Eastern Europe developed positively in 2007 and the first months of 2008.
The markets have continued to profit from economic growth far surpassing West European levels
and the associated direct investments by international corporations. The Russian market has been
particularly booming in the wake of high energy prices, which have resulted in a significant current
account surplus and excellent state finances. Furthermore, the strong Russian economy is also driv-
ing economic development across the entire region.

Warsaw was without a doubt the strongest submarket in the office sector. Vacancy rates fell to new
record lows, whilst rents reached record highs. Space in new properties in the central business
district was seldom available for less than EUR 30 / sqm, while prime rents have reached around
EUR 33 / sqm. Rents increased by between 12 to 100% year-on-year, depending on the location.

The positive developments in Hungary possibly came as an even more pleasant surprise. Despite an
economic downturn (GDP up just 1.3%) and high inflation (7.8%), approximately one-third more
office space was leased than in 2006, and rents increased by more than 10%. Prague was the only
major market in Central Europe to perform somewhat weaker. There was a noticeable decrease in
new rentals and vacancy rates have risen.

However, expectations for the office market in the second half of 2008 and for 2009 should not be
set too high. A significant number of projects started in 2006 and 2007 will come onto the market
in this time period, thereby leading to an increase in supply. As a result, vacancy rates are expected
to rise in important markets and rents in weaker locations are expected to drop.

The outlook is much more positive for the retail market. Despite a large number of development
projects involving shopping centres, strong demand for modern retail space should continue to
ensure excellent occupancy rates and positive rental developments. An overheating of the market is
expected to be purely limited to individual submarkets, if at all.
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Sound development at top
locations and high demand for
affordable living space

Positive development of
property markets in Eastern
Europe

PL, Warsaw, Mokotow
Business Park

Expansion of space
through new projects
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PL, Katowice, Silesia City Center
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RO, Craiova, Westgate Center

Strong sales of freehold flats,
virtually no demand
for rental apartments

SRB, Belgrade, Francuska
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Developments in the Russian metropolises of Moscow and St. Petersburg are worthy of particular
mention. Rents per square metre in Moscow have reached levels similar to Paris and London; never-
theless, supply is straining to keep up with demand by international retail chains. This is demon-
strated by the two major projects involving IMMOEAST, Rostokino and GoodZone, which have
been largely pre-let a long time prior to completion.

The Romanian retail market is also developing rapidly. According to the international property
service firm Colliers, retail space per inhabitant is set to more or less double. Nonetheless, the cur-
rent very positive trend is seen as a long-term one, as the population’s purchasing power, the most
important retail indicator, is rising sharply (up a remarkable 40% in 2007). Significantly over 10%
of new leases in 2007 were concluded with retail enterprises investing in Romania for the first time,
which should counteract any fears that the retail sector in Romania may also soon overheat. As such,
a significant amount of new entrants into the market are ensuring competition for new retail space.

The logistics market has also proven very attractive. A large number of logistics centres are being
developed, particularly in South-Eastern Europe and Russia; however, strong demand by the boom-
ing retail sector ensures high occupancy rates nonetheless.

The housing market is now also beginning to gain momentum. The market volume rose signifi-
cantly in 2007 and similar growth is expected for 2008. Good properties currently under develop-
ment are selling extremely well (rental properties are almost non-existent). In many cases, deve-
lopers are able to significantly surpass target sales prices, as was the case for IMMOEAST’s
Francuska project in Belgrade and the Silesia Residential project in Katowice. A defining charac-
teristic of the housing market is the almost complete lack of demand for rental apartments (aside
from a few smaller niche markets such as apartments for expatriates); demand is concentrated
almost exclusively on freehold flats.
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IMMOEAST
IMMOWEST

IMMOWEST (Germany, Switzerland)

In contrast to IMMOEAST, IMMOWEST does not invest diversely in a broad geographic area or
a range of sectors. This regional subsidiary concentrates on specific sub-markets, whereby
Germany and Switzerland account for 86.2% of the property portfolio and 54.4% of development

projects. The following section therefore only concentrates on those sub-markets in which IMMO-
WEST is active.

German office market

The German office market developed positively in 2007 and the first months of 2008. 3.7 million
sqm were let in the nine most important office locations (Berlin, Dusseldorf, Essen, Frankfurt,
Hamburg, Cologne, Leipzig, Munich and Stuttgart). Compared to 2006, this represents an increase
of 14.5% and is the second best figure since the “New Economy” boom of 2000. Rents have also
increased. Prime rents rose in seven of the nine top locations, on average by 4.7%. The largest in-
creases were recorded in Berlin, Frankfurt and Hamburg. Conversely, vacancy rates declined 3.5%.

800,000

Berlin Diisseldorf Essen Hamburg Cologne Leipzig Munich Stuttgart

Frankfurt

Hamburg

Cologne

Leipzig
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D, Glinde near Hamburg,
Emanuel-Leutze-Strasse

20% increase in
new rentals

CH, Egerkingen, Riedstrasse

Development of top rents
For warehouse space of 5,000 sqm
or more, in EUR/sqm
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Developments in Cologne, Diusseldorf and Munich, the three markets in which IMMOFINANZ
is particularly active, were in line with the overall positive trend in Germany. New rentals in
Dusseldorf reached a record all time high and vacancy rates fell by an impressive 7.4%, with mod-
ern space in areas such as the inner city only representing a small fraction of vacancies (11%). Rents
here are also rising particularly strongly. The market in neighbouring Cologne was similarly satis-
factory, with prime rents in the city centre rising to more than EUR 21/ sqm. Prime rents in Munich
rose above average by 5.1%, surpassing EUR 30 /sqm.

Forecasts for 2008 are also thoroughly positive. Demand was very satisfactory in the first months
of the year despite the financial crisis, and the trend towards falling vacancy rates should support
rental prices. As office space currently under construction has increased by a good third on the
year, and the overall economy is slowing down, it can be expected that (as is always the case during
periods of slower growth) only top locations will really profit from this positive mood, particu-
larly the inner cities.

German and Swiss logistics markets

There was a significant increase in market activity in the German logistics sector in 2007. New rent-
als increased by 20% to 3.88 million sqm according to the property services firm Jones Lang
LaSalle. This was driven by a boom in locations outside of the major conurbations (the “Big 57 of
Berlin, Disseldorf, Frankfurt, Hamburg and Munich), where new rentals increased by 53%. In
particular, the Ruhr and Cologne areas recorded excellent take-up. Around 85% of new rentals
involved leases of more than 5,000 sqm.

Rents developed stably in the major cities, as was the case in previous years. The only exception
was the Diisseldorf area, where prime rents rose around 10%. Even in these prime locations, rents
of around EUR 4.0 to 6.5 / sqm are exceptionally favourable in comparison to other European cities
and thus unlikely to come under pressure. Furthermore, competition in terms of quantity from
locations outside of the five major cities remains strong, but the price declines at these locations
over the past years have come to an end. As such, the fear that falling prices in peripheral locations
could put rents in the centres under pressure no longer seems founded.

Berlin Hamburg Diisseldorf Munich Frankfurt a. M. Wiesbaden/Mainz



IMMOWEST

Jones Lang LaSalle expects a slight increase in rents for the current year, citing low vacancy rates
at most logistics locations and what is still a satisfactory economic cycle despite the economic
slowdown. In Switzerland, traditionally a very stable logistics market, there were few changes in
2007. Vacancy rates as well as prime and average rents are at much the same level as in 2006.
Stable development is also expected for 2008.

Berlin housing market

The Berlin housing market was long dominated by major transactions with international investors
on the one hand and uncertainty over the future development on the other hand, both of which are
no longer present in these forms.

The interest of international investors and private equity in particular has decreased, and the trans-
action volume has normalised as a result. The slight economic upswing the city is experiencing has
led to a positive balance of migration and rising household numbers, which is reflected in the de-
mand for apartments. Conversely, a lack of new developments and combining and demolishing
apartments has resulted in falling supply. The result is an excess demand for around 18,000 apart-
ments per year, resulting in a slight drop in vacancy rates. Average rents will remain stable or rise
slightly. Over the medium term, the Tempelhof district, where a large share of IMMOFINANZ’s
portfolio in Berlin is located, will profit from the now finalised decision to relocate the airport.
A large inner city development area will emerge here, which will have positive effects on the
attractiveness of the district as a whole.
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Investor Relations

Capital market environment

The international capital markets were characterised by dramatic transformation during 2007/08.
In the first three months of the financial year, from May to July 2007, the financial markets and
especially the stock exchanges recorded sound performance. In late summer, however, the extent
of the US subprime crisis and its consequences were becoming increasingly obvious. To some extent
drastic writedowns on mortgage loans and their derivatives brought an abrupt end to the bull
market.

Financial and property companies were affected at first, but the growing uncertainty on the stock
markets had an increasing impact on the market’s general development, and particularly after the
turn of the year there were declines in share prices on a broad front. In the period from 20 Decem-
ber 2007 to 23 January 2008, for example, MSCI World suffered a loss of 11.6%, the Dow Jones
8.5% and EuroStoxx 17.0%.

Development on the money markets was striking as well. Despite several massive inflows of cash
on the part of the US Federal Reserve as well as the European and Asian central banks, there was
a drastic increase in interest rates on the money markets, from 4.01% to 4.86% for the 3-month
Euribor between 30 April 2007 and 30 April 2008. This upward trend has made borrowing more
difficult and more costly for property companies as well.

Property shares

European property shares were hit by the crisis earlier and harder than the stock markets as a
whole. In summer 2007 there were already strong declines in share prices which continued in the
first few months of 2008. Only in spring did the share prices somewhat recover.

The interplay of several factors was responsible for the negative development. Although clearly a
crisis in credit ratings and financial institutions, the subprime crisis was first referred to as a “prop-
erty crisis”. This led to considerable uncertainty among private and institutional investors. The
considerably more negative stance of leading investment banks toward property shares had tangible
consequences as well. Share price targets were drastically cut and “buy” recommendations with-
drawn.

The thoroughly negative mood toward property shares on the financial markets was scarcely weak-
ened by the property markets’ basically positive performance.

Performance of the IMMOFINANZ share

The price of the IMMOFINANZ share declined substantially in the course of the 2007/08 finan-
cial year. During the year the share suffered a loss of 38.38%, closing as of 30 April 2008 at
EUR 7.09. The share’s long-term performance was tangibly affected by this, thus the ten-year yield
fell to 6.69% p.a.

In the first three quarters there was a nearly non-stop downward trend reported, with each quarter
showing a negative development in share price. On 21 January just before the end of the third
quarter an annual low of EUR 5.96 was reached. In the fourth quarter the share price stabilised,
with the share recovering a portion of its loss during the year.

43

Corporate Governance and Outlook

US subprime crisis
spreads to Europe

Significant weakening
on capital markets

Sharp decline in
share prices

10-year return drops to
annual rate of 6.69%



44

Development of
IMMOFINANZ share
reflects branch indexes

Development of share price
IMMOFINANZ vs.

GPR-250 Europe, I-ATX
from 1.1.1998 to 10.8.2008

IMMOFINANZ ranks eighth on
the Vienna Stock Exchange
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The IMMOFINANZ share basically underwent a development very similar to that of the Austrian
and international property share indexes. The Austrian I-ATX index (down 37.0%) as well as the
most important European property share indexes, the EPRA (down 35.4%) and GPR 250 (down
33.6%) reported substantial losses during the IMMOFINANZ financial year.

As a result of the decline in share price the company’s market cap also decreased during the report-
ing year. IMMOFINANZ was valued at EUR 3.25 billion on the stock exchange as of 30 April
2008, down from EUR 5.49 billion the year before.
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Strong rise in liquidity

Trading in IMMOFINANZ shares increased substantially in the 2007/08 financial year. During
the reporting period 932.2 million shares were traded at a share price of EUR 7.83 billion. In terms
of trading volume IMMOFINANZ was in 8th place on the Vienna Stock Exchange. Consisting of

IMMOFINANZ and the subsidiary IMMOEAST, the IMMOFINANZ Group is in 4th place in
this ranking.

Convertible bond

IMMOFINANZ successfully issued another convertible bond in November 2007, thus placing two
major convertible bonds within one calendar year (January 2007 and November 2007). Both com-
prised a volume of EUR 750 million each, making them the largest convertible bonds ever placed
by a European property company.



Investor Relations

The convertible bond issued on 19 November 2007 features a coupon of 1.25%, the conversion price
is EUR 9.26. The bond matures in ten years on 19 November 2017. The convertible bond was of-
fered exclusively to institutional investors and was not only fully placed within a few hours, but even
substantially oversubscribed.

The placement of the two convertible bonds raised funds of EUR 1.5 billion for IMMOFINANZ.
This will provide adequate financing to support the planned growth for the next few years without
difficulty.

First dividend payment

In October 2007 a dividend was paid for the first time in the history of IMMOFINANZ. The
Executive Board proposed a payout of 33 cents per share at the annual general meeting. The mo-
tion was approved by an overwhelming majority of 99%.

At the time of the payout dividend yield was 3.65%, classifying IMMOFINANZ as one of the
companies on the Vienna Stock Exchange with the highest dividend yield. The dividend yield was
4.65% at the end of the reporting year with a closing price of EUR 7.09.

The Executive Board of IMMOFINANZ has announced that in the future the company will also pay
dividends commensurate with business performance and the development of cash flow.
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Convertible bond raises
EUR 1.5 billion

First dividend payment

Road Shows & Exhibitions

During the 2007/08 financial year intensive contacts were made with investors.
Communication particularly with institutional investors was extremely extensive. A
series of road shows included meetings with investors in the most important finan-
cial centres in the world, including Sydney, Singapore, Tokyo, New York, London,
Zurich, Amsterdam, Paris, Frankfurt, Stockholm, Athens, Istanbul and Munich. Infor-
mation events were also organised in Stegersbach, Lech and Kitzbiihel. In addition,
the board members held 300 individual meetings with leading investors from all

over the world.

Information about and contact with private shareholders also had a high priority.
For example, IMMOFINANZ took part in the “GEWINN Trade Fair,” one of the leading
investor trade fairs in Europe. Furthermore, information was sent several times to
shareholders in the form of the “IMMOFINANZ Newsletter.” The hits on the website
www.immofinanz.com also showed a substantial rise.
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Analysis of the IMMOFINANZ share

At the end of the 2007/08 financial year nine investment banks published analyses on IMMO-

FINANZ:

e Aurel Leven

e Credit Suisse

¢ Deutsche Bank

* Exane

e Lehman Brothers
* Kempen & Co

*  Merrill Lynch

¢ Raiffeisen

¢ UniCredit

Goldman Sachs also started coverage of the IMMOFINANZ share in 2008/09.

Total capitalisation and weighting in the ATX Prime Market
Weighted at free float as of 30.6.2008

Weighting in %

Company Total capitalisation in EUR mill.
OMVAG 14,9580  157%
Raiffeisen International Bank Holding AG 12,554.3
Erste Bank der Osterreichischen Sparkassen AG 12,534.6
Verbundgesellschaft AG KAT. A 8,595.9
VOESTALPINE AG 8,575.5
Telekom Austria AG 6,338.8
STRABAG SE 5,643.0
Vienna Insurance Group 5,368.3
IMMOEAST AG 4,694.4
BOEHLER-UDDEHOLM AG 3,657.7
EVN AG 3,597.6
IMMOFINANZ AG 3,006.5
Wienerberger AG 2,238.9
UNIQA Versicherungen AG 2,166.8
Andritz AG 2,082.6

Performance of the IMMOFINANZ share as of 30.4.2008

Period Performance
1year 38.38%
3 years 1.40% p.a.
5 years 4.62% p.a.

10 years 6.69% p.a.
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Key data on the IMMOFINANZ share

2007/08 Change in % 2006/07 2005/06
Equity as of 30.4. in ELRmill. 78772 20.9% 65153 3,436.9
Number of shares as of 30.4. in mill. 459.0 - 459.0 335.6
Annual high in EUR 12.20 -2.7% 12.54 8.75
Annual low in EUR 5.96 -27.8% 8.25 6.99
Price at year-end in EUR 7.09 -40.7% 11.96 8.68
Market capitalisation as of 30.4. in EUR mill. 3,254.3 -40.7% 5,490.0 2,913.4
Trading volume (financial year) in EUR mill. 7,828.1 10.3% 7,098.9 2,280
Fair value as of 30.4. in EUR mill. 18,240.2 12.0% 16,281.9 6,884
Earnings per share in EUR 0.66 -35.9% 1.03 0.99
Net asset value per share in EUR 11.55 6.5% 10.9 9.4
P/E ratio as of 30.4. 10.7 -7.5% 11.6 8.6

Information on the IMMOFINANZ share

Contact at Investor Relations
Shareholders’ telephone

E-Mail

Internet

Vienna Stock Exchange SIN
Vienna Stock Exchange Ticker Symbol
Reuters

Datastream

Bloomberg

ISIN

Included in the following indexes

Financial Calendar
23 September 2008
25 September 2008
29 December 2008
26 March 2009

Margit Hermentin

+34/1/532 06 39

investor@immofinanz.com

www.immofinanz.com
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WBI, ATX Prime, Immobilien-ATX, EPRA Europe, GPR 15,

DJ EuroStoxx, D) STOXX 600, GPR 250 Europe, GPR 250 Global,
MSCI World, MSCI Europe, MSCI EMU (European Monetary Union),
FTSE World Europe, FTSE Global Index

15th Annual General Meeting

Report on the First Quarter as of 31 July 2008
Report on the First Half Year as of 31 October 2008
Report on the Third Quarter as of 31 January 2009



The Financial Market
Climate and Development
of Fair Value

Crisis of confidence leads to
increase in financing costs

Lower number of transactions
on property markets

Higher market yields
responsible for decline in
revaluation results

The turbulence in the international financial sector also had a noticeable effect on property invest-
ment markets during 2007/08. Growing uncertainty among market participants triggered a deepen-
ing crisis of confidence that, in turn, was reflected in a significant rise in the cost of financing — both
on the capital market (corporate bonds) and in financial institutions (credits).

The steady increase in interest rates led to a substantial change in the evaluation of European
property markets. Concerns over potential overheating became a significant issue, and caused
institutional investors to drastically reduce their activities in the property arena. This was also
reflected in a sharp decline in the volume and number of property transactions.

The developments on financial and credit markets triggered a general rise in yields on the property
markets This had an appropriate negative effect on fair value and was reflected in a substantial
decline in the revaluation results recorded for the IMMOFINANZ investment properties. Re-
valuation results totalled EUR 370.0 million in 2007/08, which represents a decline of 50.6%
compared with the prior year value of EUR 749.7 million.

However, there were substantial differences in the development of yields across the regions in
which IMMOFINANZ is active. These differences were accordingly reflected in a wide variance
in the revaluation results recorded by IMMOAUSTRIA, IMMOEAST and IMMOWEST.

Market yields for investment properties in 2008

Yields used for valuation

from to
IMMOAUSTRIA 3.00  9.50%
IMMOWEST 550% 10.25%
IMMOEAST
Poland 5.35% 7.25%
Slovakia 6.50% 8.50%
Czech Republic 5.25% 7.75%
Hungary 6.10% 9.00%
Bulgaria 8.30% 8.50%
Croatia 7.50%
Romania 6.25% 7.50%
Slovenia 7.25%

Russia 9.00%



The Financial Market Climate and
Development of Fair Value

Market yields for development projects (excl. inventories)

Yields used for valuation

from to
IMMOAUSTRIA 7.00% 8.50%
IMMOWEST 5.75% 10.55%
IMMOEAST
Poland 6.00% 7.50%
Slovakia 6.70% 8.25%
Czech Republic 6.00% 8.75%
Hungary 7.00%
Bosnia 10.50%
Bulgaria 8.00% 8.50%
Croatia 7.50%
Romania 6.25% 8.50%
Serbia 8.25%
Slovenia 7.00%
Russia 8.00% 10.00%
Ukraine 10.00%
Revaluation results
All amounts in TEUR 2007/08 2006/07 Change in %
IMMOAUSTRA 293,726.9 263,116.1 11.6%
IMMOWEST 65,210.5 -6,494.9 -1,104.0%
IMMOEAST/CEE -65,252.7 232,746.1 -128.0%
IMMOEAST/SEE 97,758.8 210,901.6 -53.6%
IMMOEAST/CIS -21,416.0 49,447 .4 -143.3%
IMMOEAST Total 11,090.1¢ 493,095.1 -97.8%
IMMOFINANZ 370,027.5 749,7163  -50.6%

IMMOAUSTRIA

The returns on the Austrian property market remained largely stable throughout 2007/08, with
only minor fluctuations on individual submarkets. This development was contrasted by an upturn
in rental prices which, in turn, had a positive effect on fair value. The increase in the value of
properties that resulted from these higher rents was generally offset by the impairment charges that
were triggered by rising yields. IMMOAUSTRIA, the regional holding company of IMMO-
FINANZ for properties in Austria, reported virtually no change in revaluation results in year-on-
year comparison.
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Market yields remain nearly
constant in Austria
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High revaluation gains
for BUWOG

Higher market yields and rising
rental prices for IMMOEAST

Sharp decline in
revaluation results
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The major exception was formed by the residential construction subsidiary BUWOG/ESG, where
high gains were recorded on the revaluation of investment properties. This company profited from
the stable development of value in subsidised apartments, which represent a major share of the
portfolio and are hardly influenced by the volatility on financial markets. In addition, BUWOG/
ESG was able to benefit from numerous measures that were implemented to improve the earning
power and optimise the portfolio of investment properties. For this reason, nearly the entire
revaluation results recorded by IMMOAUSTRIA were generated by the BUWOG/ESG business.
The appraisals performed by external experts showed an increase of EUR 293.7 million in fair
value, which represents a plus of 11.6% over the prior year.

IMMOEAST

The financial market crisis had an exceptionally strong effect on the property markets in Central,
Eastern and South-Eastern Europe. The reporting period brought a general rise in yields on the key
markets for IMMOEAST, which generally ranged from 0.5 to 1.5 percentage points. In contrast,
the increase in rental income had a positive influence on fair value. The rental income generated
on properties owned by IMMOEAST in 2006/07 rose by an average of 6.3% during the reporting
year. This effect substantially offset the impairment charges that resulted from the rise in market
yields.

Revaluation results differed significantly between the three regional subsegments (Central and
Eastern Europe, South-Eastern Europe and the Community of Independent States). The revaluation
results for investment properties were noticeably lower than in 2006/07 across all geographical
regions, but a substantial increase of EUR 97.8 million was recorded in South-Eastern Europe
(Romania, Bulgaria and the successor states of the former Yugoslavia). Central and Eastern Europe
(Poland, Czech Republic, Hungary and Slovakia) reported negative revaluation results of
EUR -65.2 million. In Russia and Ukraine revaluation results were also negative, totalling
EUR -21.4 million. IMMOEAST recorded revaluation results of EUR 11.1 million for the 2007/08
financial year, compared with EUR 493.1 million in 2006/07.



The Financial Market Climate and
Development of Fair Value

IMMOWEST

IMMOWEST recorded a fundamental improvement in revaluation results during 2007/08. This
segment, which is focused on investments in Germany, recorded an impairment loss in 2006/07 as
the result of unfavourable market conditions. The reporting period brought a reversal of this trend,
with an increase in fair value in practically all major parts of the portfolio. Revaluation results in
the IMMOWEST segment equalled EUR 65.2 million for the reporting year. Sound growth was
registered by the large apartment portfolio in Berlin (2,250 apartments) as well as the subsidiaries
Deutsche Lagerhaus and City Box.
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Positive trend reversal
in Germany

Valuation by external experts

IMMOFINANZ prepares its consolidated financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). In preparation for financial reporting, the portfolio proper-
ties are valued on a regular basis by independent experts - a process that is also recommended
by the European Public Real Estate Association (EPRA). International Valuation Standards (IVS)
form the basis for this valuation, in accordance with the recommendations issued by the EPRA.
Investment properties are valued using the discounted cash flow method, specifically in the
form of the term and reversion model. Development projects are measured using the full dis-

counted cash flow approach.

The application of these methods generally leads to fluctuations that are caused by changes
in the level of market rents, market yields and estimations for the future development of the
market. Due to the size of the property portfolio, the results of these regular property valuations
have a stronger effect on the balance sheet and income statement over the short-term than
other indicators that are used to evaluate the company’s earnings position (e.g. increases or

decreases in rental income or operating costs).

The fair values of the properties in the IMMOFINANZ portfolio are determined by external ex-
perts at the middle and the end of the financial year. An internal valuation is performed on
the basis of these same criteria at the end of the first and third quarters of each financial year.
Colliers, an international property service provider and one of the leading property companies
in the world, is responsible for the appraisal of properties in all three IMMOFINANZ segments.
Atisreal also prepares expert opinions for selected objects in the IMMOWEST segment, while the
IMMOAUSTRIA properties are valued by the Colliers International Group or a committee that is

comprised of three court-certified property experts.



Corporate Governance

Responsible corporate
management and control

Code as a guideline

Compliance with Austrian
Corporate Governance Code

Corporate Governance Report for the
2007/08 Financial Year

The Austrian Corporate Governance Code was first published by the Austrian Working Group for
Corporate Governance in October 2002. It is based on the provisions of Austrian corporate law,
securities law and capital markets law as well as recommendations by the European Commission
regarding the duties of the supervisory board and the remuneration of directors, and the OECD
Principles of Corporate Governance. The code aims to establish responsible guidelines for corpo-
rate management and control with a view towards the long-term creation of value that reflects
the rights and obligations of all parties concerned and their relations to one another. In this way
the code works to ensure the highest possible level of transparency and strengthen the confidence
of investors and companies in Austria as a financial centre. The full code can be accessed at
www.immofinanz.com and www.corporate-governance.at.

The Executive Board and Supervisory Board of IMMOFINANZ AG have accepted the Austrian
Code of Corporate Governance and voluntarily agreed to comply with its provisions.

IMMOFINANZ AG pursues a strategy of sustainable and long-term appreciation of the company.
The foundations required to meet this goal are good corporate governance, a prompt and detailed
communication policy and the continual development of efficient management controls. The Austrian
Corporate Governance Code represents an important framework for managing and monitoring the
company.

Overview of deviations from the code including explanations

IMMOFINANZ AG adhered to all rules of the Austrian Corporate Governance Code in the
2007/08 financial year, although some rules were not applicable to the specific situation concern-
ing the existing management contract with Constantia Privatbank Aktiengesellschaft. A separate
staff unit was established that is responsible for internal auditing and reports directly to the
Executive Board. As a result, there are no longer any deviations from the “Comply or Explain”
rules (C rules).

Rules 38 and 57

An age limit is neither prescribed for members of the Executive Board nor of the Supervisory Board
in either the company’s statutes or articles of association. The Supervisory Board does not believe
that an age limit is wise and has therefore spoken out against one.

Internal auditing staff unit

The internal auditing staff unit reports directly to the Executive Board, which communicates
accordingly with the Supervisory Board and reports on planning and the most significant results
of controlling measures.
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Risk management

The risk management system is monitored centrally by the Executive Board and also by the respon-
sible departments and organisational units. Furthermore, the documentation, evaluation and
reporting of identified risks is carried out by the risk management department. The controlling
department plays a supporting role with regard to providing information on existing and imminent
risks.

The management letter and report on the efficiency of the company’s risk management system by
the annual auditor is presented to the members of the Supervisory Board and discussed by the
Audit Committee and Supervisory Board.

Shareholder structure

IMMOFINANZ AG has issued approximately 459 million shares. As of 31 July 2008, 8.6% of
these shares were held by the Fries Familien-Privatstiftung and Dr. Rudolf Fries Familien-Privat-
stiftung. The remaining 91.4% represent free float. Constantia Privatbank holds the six registered
shares in IMMOFINANZ. Each of these shares grants the right to appoint one member of the
Supervisory Board, although this option has not been exercised to date. All members of the Super-
visory Board were elected by the company’s annual general meeting.

Equal treatment of all shareholders

There is no upper limit to shareholders’ voting rights and no shares carry preferential voting rights.
The principle of “one share, one vote” is thus in effect. The Austrian Takeover Act guarantees that
in the case of a takeover bid (mandatory bid), each shareholder will receive the same price for his/
her shares. Above and beyond this, IMMOFINANZ strives to provide its shareholders with the
best possible support when attending shareholders’ meetings and exercising their rights to debate
and vote.

Executive Board

The IMMOFINANZ Executive Board consisted of Karl Petrikovics (CEO) and Norbert Gertner.
The duties of the Executive Board duties are regulated by the articles of association and rules of
procedure, with all issues being discussed by the board members at regular meetings.

The Executive Board received no remuneration from IMMOFINANZ AG over the reporting period,
with remuneration instead coming from Constantia Privatbank Aktiengesellschaft AG on the basis
of the existing management contract. The management contract and the fees paid by the company
are covered in detail in the annual report.
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Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board consisted of four members during the reporting period, all of whom were
elected by the Annual General Meeting. None of the members are in any way affiliated either
privately or commercially with the company or the Executive Board in such a way as to constitute
a conflict of interest. The Supervisory Board defined the guidelines for independence outlined in
Appendix 1 of the Austrian Code of Corporate Governance as the criteria for determining the
independence of board members. Based on these criteria, all but one member of the board have
declared themselves free of conflicts of interest. Helmut Schwager has declared a conflict of inter-
est based on his function as a member of the board of Constantia Privatbank Aktiengesellschaft.
There are no direct contracts, in particular consulting contracts, between IMMOFINANZ and the
members of the Supervisory Board and there are no cross-representations.

Members of the Supervisory Board

Member since End of current term of office
Helmut Schwager 4 April 1990 AGM 2011
Michael Kaufmann 25 September 1997  AGM 2011
Klaus Hiibner 28 September 2006  AGM 2011
Guido Schmidt-Chiari 23 September 1998  AGM 2011

Information on the other mandates held by members of the Supervisory Board in listed companies
can be found on the company’s homepage at www.immofinanz.com.

The remuneration for the members of the Supervisory Board is determined by the annual general
meeting and payable after the end of the financial year. The remuneration approved by the annual
general meeting is distributed at the discretion of the entire Supervisory Board. In the past, the
chairman received double the amount of ordinary board members and the vice-chairman 1.5-times
the amount of ordinary board members, which was distributed on a pro rata temporis basis.

Supervisory Board committees

The Supervisory Board has established an audit committee, which is responsible for evaluating the
annual financial statements and recommendation for the distribution of profits as well as the con-
solidated financial statements and group management report in preparation for the full Super-
visory Board. It is also responsible for submitting a recommendation to the Supervisory Board for
the nomination of an auditor, and monitoring the efficiency and effectiveness of risk management
and the internal auditing unit. In accordance with the requirements of the Austrian Corporate
Governance Code, a financial expert is a member of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
is composed of Helmut Schwager, Klaus Hiibner and Guido Schmidt-Chiari.

The sections of the articles of association governing the appointment of committees and their
decision-making authority are published on the IMMOFINANZ homepage.

The Presidium of the Supervisory Board, which consists of the chairman and vice-chairman, has
the authority to approve transactions in urgent cases. The full Supervisory Board must immedi-
ately be informed of any such approvals.

Directors’ Dealings

Current information on the purchase and sale of IMMOFINANZ shares by the members of the
Executive Board and the Supervisory Board is accessible from http://www.immofinanz.com/02ir/
directors_dealings.htm by means of a link to the Austrian Financial Market Authority.
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Transparency through IFRS

IMMOFINANZ adheres to the provisions of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
for accounting and financial reporting. These standards ensure a high degree of objectivity and
integrity. Financial data is developed and presented to portray the underlying business as correctly
as possible in order to preserve and expand investors’ confidence in the company by means of
transparent management and clear financial reporting.

Monitoring adherence to the Austrian Corporate Governance Code

Compliance with the provisions of the Austrian Corporate Governance Code in 2007/08 was moni-
tored by KPMG Austria GmbH Wirtschaftsprifungs- und Steuerberatungsgesellschaft on the basis
of the provisions of the International Federation of Accountants for the review of annual financial
statements.

The audit for the 2007/08 financial year provided no grounds for objection.

2007/08 Business Year

Summary of the evaluation of compliance with
the Austrian Corporate Governance Code during the
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Clear financial reporting
to promote trust

Review by KPMG

We have evaluated compliance with the Austrian Corporate Governance Code by the Executive Board and
Supervisory Board of IMMOFINANZ AG, Vienna, as presented in the public statement made by the Executive
Board. The Executive Board and Supervisory Board of the company are responsible for compliance with the
individual regulations as well as public reporting. Our responsibility is to issue a report on compliance with

the regulations of the code based on our evaluation.

We conducted our evaluation in accordance with the rules issued by the International Federation of Account-
ants (IFAC) for activities related to the review of annual financial statements (ISRE 2400). These principles
require that we plan and perform the evaluation to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the statement
by the Executive Board on compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is free of material misstatements.
The evaluation basically includes interviews with the responsible persons as well as an examination, on a test
basis, of compliance with the Austrian Corporate Governance Code. We performed our evaluation based on
the questionnaire issued by the Austrian Working Group for Corporate Governance.

Our evaluation we did not reveal any facts that conflict with the statement issued by the Executive Board on
compliance with the provisions of the Austrian Corporate Governance Code. Ourresponsibility and liability as
auditors of the annual financial statements are determined by the provisions of § 275 Par. 2 of the Austrian

Commercial Code.

Vienna, 22 August 2008

KPMG Austria GmbH

Wirtschaftspriifungs- und Steuerberatungsgesellschaft

Yann-Georg Hansa Ginther Hirschbock
Certified Public Accountants Certified Public Accountants



Report of the
Supervisory Board

Monitoring of management
and consultation on
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Meetings and resolutions

The cooperation between the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board during the reporting year
was characterised by open and extensive discussions on the development of business and the
general economic environment as well as the company’s strategy and perspectives. The Supervisory
Board and the Executive Board met regularly to examine the business and financial position, invest-
ment plans, market situation and risk management of IMMOFINANZ AG and its subsidiaries.

During the reporting year the Supervisory Board carried out the duties required by law and the
articles of association, and provided support for the Executive Board on decisions of fundamental
importance in accordance with the principles of good corporate governance. The Executive Board
informed the Supervisory Board of the position of the company as well as individual transactions
and measures through regular, timely and comprehensive reports. All proposed acquisitions and
sales were presented to the Supervisory Board for approval.

The Supervisory Board held five meetings during the 2007/08 financial year; with the exception of
Mr. Kaufmann, all members attended more than half of the meetings. Resolutions were also passed
in writing, as provided for by the articles of association and rules of procedure in urgent cases. In
order to facilitate the transfer of information on current events and strategic issues, the Executive
Board supplied up-to-date information on major transactions and maintained regular contact with
the members of the Supervisory Board between the meetings.

The major topics covered at the meetings of the Supervisory Board included the general develop-
ment of business and the capital structure of the company, the active management and optimisation
of the portfolio as well as the effects of the change in rental yields and the market environment on
the value of the properties. The Supervisory Board requested and received regular reports on the
economic and structural changes in the target markets of IMMOFINANZ and its subsidiaries
in addition to information on the development of financial and capital markets, and repeatedly
evaluated the resulting opportunities and risks with the Executive Board. The Executive Board and
Supervisory Board intend to continue their comprehensive evaluation of the long-term potential of
the company and the resulting strategic opportunities during the coming year.



Report of the Supervisory Board

The Audit Committee met twice during the reporting year, specifically to discuss the annual financial
statements, the consolidated financial statements and the management report for 2006/07. Before
issuing a recommendation for the election of an auditor for the 2007/08 financial year, the Audit
Committee and the full Supervisory Board approved and carried out a new tender for this work.
The audit of the financial statements was evaluated on the basis of quality criteria, which led to a
reduction in the fees for the audit of the annual and consolidated financial statements.

The annual financial statements and management report of IMMOFINANZ AG as well as the
consolidated financial statements and group management report for 2007/08 in accordance with
IFRS were audited by KPMG Austria GmbH Wirtschaftsprifungs- und Steuerberatungsgesellschaft
and awarded an unqualified opinion. The Audit Committee discussed the documentation for the
financial statements as well as the recommendation for the distribution of profit and the audit
reports in detail with the auditor and presented this information to the Supervisory Board. The
Supervisory Board evaluated this data and agreed with the results of the audit. The Supervisory
Board accepted the annual financial statements, which are therefore considered approved in
accordance with § 125 (2) of the Austrian Stock Corporation Act. The members of the Supervisory
Board also declared their agreement with the recommendation of the Executive Board for the use
of retained earnings. The annual report by the internal audit department did not identify any risks
which, in the absence of controls, could have a material effect on the continued existence or devel-
opment of business in the company. Consequently, there were no grounds for objections.

The current financial crisis and its impact on the property market represent a significant challenge
for the company and its shareholders. The successful development of IMMOFINANZ AG is un-
fortunately not reflected in the share price at this time. Based on the accomplishments of the past
months and years, the Supervisory Board believes the company is well equipped to master these
challenges and make the best possible use of the available opportunities. The Supervisory Board
views the recent annual general meeting approval of the decision to acquire the property segment
of Constantia Privatbank Aktiengesellschaft as an important strategic and economic step for the
future.

In conclusion, the Supervisory Board would like to thank the management and employees for their
personal commitment and the shareholders of IMMOFINANZ AG for their continued confidence.

Vienna, 22 August 2008

%f/

Helmut Schwager
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
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After the Reporting Period

IMMOAUSTRIA

Mixed-use portfolio in Vienna and Graz

In June 2008 IMMOAUSTRIA acquired a portfolio of first-rate properties in the best city-centre
locations. Of the six properties five are located in Vienna and one in Graz. The portfolio also in-
cludes two buildings in Vienna’s first district and a property on Austria’s most important shopping
mile, Mariahilfer Strasse. The portfolio’s total usable space is 22,031 sqm, the overall purchase
price approx. EUR 50 million.

IMMOWEST

Prime properties in major German city centres

IMMOWEST acquired a portfolio with three first-rate properties in the German metropolises of
Hamburg, Frankfurt and Nuremberg. All three properties are in absolute top locations in the
respective city (Hamburg: Monckebergstrasse; Frankfurt / Main: Rossmarkt; Nuremberg: Haupt-
markt). The total lettable space of the portfolio is 18,300 sqm, the investment volume approx.
EUR 64 million.

Saint Isidore logistics centre (Nice / Monaco)

IMMOWEST acquired a modern property with 17,500 sqm of lettable space in the Saint Isidore
logistics centre between Nice and Monaco. Saint Isidore is the central shipping area for goods for
the cities on the Cote d’Azur. The goods are generally only delivered by small lorries; the reloading
from large into smaller lorries takes place in Saint Isidore.

IMMOEAST

Russia Development Fund LP

The Russia Development Fund LP (RDF) will invest in stakes in property development companies
and purchase objects in Russia and other CIS countries. The target volume of the fund is
EUR 450 million. In addition to the largest stakeholder IMMOEAST, the European Bank for
Reconstruction and Development (EBRD) and a fund from the leading investment company
Aberdeen Asset Management are some of the founding partners of the fund.

Everest Cold Storage (RO, Bucharest)

In May 2008 a commitment to invest in the Everest Cold Storage project was made. The modern
cold storage facility in Bucharest is to be realised in three phases and encompasses approx.
14,000 sqm of cold storage space and 1,060 sqm of office space. The construction period for phase
one is planned for October 2008 until June 2009. The overall project is to be completed by October
2010. IMMOEAST owns 60% of the shares.

Acquisition of the property division of Constantia
Privatbank / internalisation of management
After the reporting period 40% of the real estate division of Constantia Privatbank was acquired.

The subsidiary IMMOEAST acquired 60%. All information concerning this transaction is avail-
able on pages 26 to 32.
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Segment Reporting

IMMOFINANZ
Distribution
of fair value

As of 30.4.2008

IMMOFINANZ
Sectoral distribution
of lettable space

as a % of total lettable space
As of 30.4.2008

3,078 properties
with 13,384,952 sqm of
lettable space

In addition to the segment information in the management report (page 68ff) and in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements (page 98ff), the following is an overview of the most impor-
tant developments in the operations of the three segments, IMMOAUSTRIA, IMMOEAST and
IMMOWEST.

Overview of segment weighting

As of 30.4.2008 IMMOAUSTRIA IMMOEAST IMMOWEST IMMOFINANZ
Number of objects 1605 497 976 3,078
Total lettable space in sqm 4,357,188 6,721,084 2,306,680 13,384,952
Share of total lettable space in % 32.6% 50.2% 17.2% 100.0%
Occupancy rate % 95.5% 93.2% 94.9% 94.4%
Direct investments in EUR mill. 101.8 1,255.3 268.8 1,625.8
Share of direct investments in % 6.3% 77.2% 16.5% 100.0%
Fair value (incl. contracted

investments) in EUR mill. 4,642.9 10,900.80 2,695.5 18,240.2
Proportion of fair value in % 25.4% 59.8% 14.8% 100.0%
IMMOEASTCIS ... 104% .

IMMOAUSTRIA 12.1%

"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" 25.6% IMMOEAST CEE

,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 23.8% ... |MMOEASTSEE
IMMOWEST .. 148% .
WIPARK 3%
Recreation/Hotel 22%
Parking 5%
Residential excl. BUWOG/ESG 12.8% .
””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””” 236% ... 0Offices
Retail 17.2% 19.7% Logistics

18.1% Residential BUWOG/ESG

The portfolio of IMMOFINANZ includes 3,078 objects with lettable space totaling 13,384,952 sqm
as of 30 April 2008. Since its successful expansion, the weighting of the portfolio has shifted to the
IMMOEAST segment, which accounts for 50.2% of the lettable space. 32.6% of the remainder is
distributed to IMMOAUSTRIA and 17.2% to the IMMOWEST segment, which invests in Ger-
many and Switzerland. Of the investment volume of EUR 1,625.6 million in the 2007/08 financial
year, 77.2% is attributed to the IMMOEAST segment, 16.5% to IMMOWEST and just 6.3% to
IMMOAUSTRIA.



Segment Reporting

The structure of rental income shows a proportion of more than one-third for the office and logistics/
retail segments, respectively. Accounting for 21.8% of the total rental income at IMMOFINANZ,
rental income from the residential segment is generated largely in Austria, parking revenues as well.

IMMOAUSTRIA Segment

Overview of IMMOAUSTRIA Properties?

2007/08
Residential properties
Number of objects 1,353
Total lettable space in sqm 3,054,552
Retail properties
Number of objects 149
Total lettable space in sqm 365,693
Office properties
Number of objects 49
Total lettable space in sqm 616,386
WIPARK/garages owned
Number of objects 15
Total lettable space in sqm 181,362
Recreation/hotel properties
Number of objects 4
Total lettable space in sqm 64,571
Logistics properties
Number of objects 35
Total lettable space in sqm 74,624
Total number of objects IMMOAUSTRIA 1,605
Total lettable space in sqm IMMOAUSTRIA 4,357,188

1) incl. parking spaces (rounded).
2) The objects are grouped according to their primarily use.

Economic environment and segment orientation

Despite the fact that the IMMOAUSTRIA segment owns property in each of Austria’s nine prov-
inces, with 45.6% of the lettable space the unequivocal focus is on the capital Vienna, which is the
country’s only internationally relevant market, particularly for office space. BUWOG/ESG’s
residential portfolio constitutes the sectoral focus with a share of 55.6%. In addition to the retail
storage sector with the subsidiary SelfStorage — Dein Lagerraum, of growing importance is the
logistics sector, where a lucrative niche has been developed in Austria, Germany and Switzerland;
for practical reasons the international business of this subsidiary is also included in the IMMO-
AUSTRIA segment.

Due to IMMOAUSTRIA’s portfolio structure the segment’s sensitivity to economic cycles is catego-
rised as low and is generally restricted to the office segment with the usual time lag. The high
proportion of residential space constitutes a stabilising factor with steady cash flow, which was
successfully augmented in the reporting year due to active portfolio management and the current
price performance. In 2007, as well, the Austrian economy showed stronger development than the
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Euro zone average of 2.7% with a real increase in GDP of 3.1%. This development was supported
once again by a solid export business, which continued the success of the last few years despite a
strong euro and high commodity prices.

IMMOAUSTRIA Recreation/hotel 1.7%
Sectoral distribution
of lettable space?
as a % of total lettable space >
As of 30.4.2008 : -
55.6% Residential BUWOG/ESG
Offices . .........105% .. W
Parking? 16.3%

1) The lettable space of mixed-use objects was
proportionally allocated to the sectors.
2) incl. WIPARK incl. WIPARK Hungaria

IMMOAUSTRIA ~ Other® —  46%
Regional distribution Salzburg 3.7%
of lettable space  1yrq| 3.7% . -
o/ Af total lettable ecnare 07T T T T T TS T TS ST m T s m T m T n T n .
as a % of total lettable space Upper Austria 4.7%
AS 0f30.4.2008  +5--ioosm oo T ,
LowerAustria ... 50% A 45.6% o Vienna
Styria ] 10.7% ...
Carinthia 22.0%

1) Burgenland, Vorarlberg, WIPARK Hungaria,
Self-storage international, Kempinski Switzerland

Business development — IMMOAUSTRIA segment

Key data on the IMMOAUSTRIA segment

2007/08 2006/07 Change in %
Revenuesin TEULR 294,183.1 289,788.2 1.5%
Thereof rental income in TEUR 213,696.7 202,592.3 5.5%
Results of operations (EBITDA) in TEUR 120,891.1 151,566.1 -20.2 %
Operating profit (EBIT) in TEUR 404,162.4 393,219.3 2.8%
Cash EBIT in TEUR 117,012.6 150,648.3 -22.3%
Cash EBIT margin in % 39.8% 52.0% -23.5%
Segment assets in TEUR 6,683,640.7 5,438,700.8 22.9%
Segment liabilities in TEUR 4,925,402.1 4,234,702.5 16.3%
Lettable space as a % of the total portfolio 32.6% 39.5% -17.4%
Fair value of properties
incl. contracted investments in EUR mill. 4,642.9 4,468.8 3.9%

Fair value as a % of the total portfolio 25.4% 27.4% -7.3%



Segment Reporting

As a whole, the IMMOAUSTRIA segment boosted rental income by 5.5% to EUR 213.7 million
in the 2007/08 financial year. Increases were generated in every secondary segment including the
recreation/hotel sector. In the residential business sales-related declines were more than balanced
out by new projects, generating a total increase of 4%. Growth rates were more conspicuous in the
office segment at 8.5% and in parking at 11.5%. Due to lower year-on-year inventory sales and
a slightly lower-than-average rise in operating costs charged to tenants and other revenues, at
EUR 294.2 million revenues rose just 1.5%. A 20.2% decline in EBITDA to EUR 120.9 million
was reported as a result of higher expenses and lower other operating income. An increase in re-
valuation results of 11.6% to EUR 293.7 million as well as lower depreciation and amortisation led
to an increase in EBIT of 2.8% to EUR 404.2 million. After an adjustment for non-cash items, cash
EBIT equalled EUR 117 million (2006/07: EUR 150.7 million) and represents a decline of 52.0%
to 39.8% in the cash EBIT margin with nearly constant revenues.

Recreation/hotel 29% o,
Parking 81% o
Logistics/retail . 203%

,,,,,,,,,,, 47.0% ... Residential
Offices . 224% %
IMMOEAST Segment
Overview of IMMOEAST PropertiesV?

2007/08

Residential properties
Number of objects 99
Total lettable space in sqm 1,098,882
Retail properties
Number of objects 164
Total lettable space in sqm 2,248,511
Office properties
Number of objects 170
Total lettable space in sqm 2,160,004
Recreation/hotel properties
Number of objects 2
Total lettable space in sqm 90,273
Logistics properties
Number of objects 62
Total lettable space in sqm 1,123,414
Total number of objects IMMOEAST 497
Total lettable space in sqm IMMOEAST 6,721,084

1) incl. parking spaces (rounded).
2) The objects are grouped according to their primarily use.
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Economic environment and segment orientation
High  Compared to the economic growth in the West European countries of the EU-15, which according
economic growth o Eurostat reported average growth of 2.7%, the Central, East and South-East European economies
continued the prosperous development of previous years. While the Czech Republic and Poland
reported growth rates of 6.5% and Slovakia 10.4%, Hungary is the only country in this region
which reported a year-on-year decline to 1.3%. Slovenia (+6.1%), Croatia (+5.6%), Serbia (+7.5%),
Bulgaria (+6.2%) and Romania (+6.0%) also continued the performance of previous years. Russia
and Ukraine are clearly above the comparable Western European figure, at 8.1% and 7.6%, respec-
tively.

77.2% of the total ~ With a volume of EUR 1,255.3 million, the IMMOEAST segment was the focus of investment for
investments of  IMMOFINANZ in the 2007/08 financial year as well. Particularly in Romania, Russia, Bulgaria,

IMMOFINANZ  piland and the Czech Republic numerous development projects and investment plans were realised
or continued on schedule. The sectoral focal points were logistics and retail objects, each with a share
of slightly more than 25%. Residential space and office objects each account for 20% of the new
investments.

IMMOEAST  Parking . 19% e
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Business development - IMMOEAST segment

Key data on the IMMOEAST segment

2007/08 2006/07 Change in %
Revenuesin TEOLR 297,2133 192,920.4  541%
Thereof rental income in TEUR 220,708.4 146,151.2 51.0%
Results of operations (EBITDA) in TEUR 144,953.2 92,009.9 57.5%
Operating profit (EBIT) in TEUR 15,010.7 541,288.7 -97.2%
Cash EBIT in TEUR 135,342.4 73,932.0 83.1%
Cash EBIT margin in % 45.5% 38.3% 18.8%
Segment assets in TEUR 10,425,333.6 6,728,193.7 55.0%
Segment liabilities in TEUR 2,539,583.4 1,805,107.9 40.7%
Lettable space as a % of the total portfolio 50.2% 43.2% 16.2%
Fair value of properties
incl. contracted investments in EUR mill 10,900.8 9,019.2 20.9%
Fair value as a % of the total portfolio 59.8% 55.4% 7.9%

The IMMOEAST segment boosted its revenues by 54.1% to EUR 297.2 million in the 2007/08  Increase in revenues and
financial year. The rental income generated by the segment was 51% above the level of the previous ~ EBITDA, valuation-related
year at EUR 220.7 million, with significant increases in revenues achieved in all relevant sectors. decline in EBIT
Due to the disproportionately low growth in operating costs and higher other operating income
EBITDA improved 57.5% to EUR 145.0 million. Due to the revaluation result of EUR 11.1 million,
down from EUR 493.1 million the year before, a decline in EBIT of 97.2% to EUR 15.0 million
was reported. After an adjustment for non-cash items, cash EBIT also showed considerable im-
provement — plus 83.1% to EUR 135.3 million, resulting in a cash EBIT margin of 45.5%, up from

38.3% the year before.

IMMOEAST
Parking 2.6% Structure of rental income
””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””” ! 2007/08

by secondary segment

in %

Logistics/retail ~ 458% 51.6% Offices
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IMMOWEST Segment

Overview of IMMOWEST PropertiesV?

2007/08
Residential properties
Number of objects 274
Total lettable space in sqm 437,469
Retail properties
Number of objects 66
Total lettable space in sqm 111,438
Office properties
Number of objects 228
Total lettable space in sqm 526,859
WIPARK/garages owned
Number of objects
Total lettable space in sqm
Recreation/hotel properties
Number of objects 47
Total lettable space in sqm 67,950
Logistics properties
Number of objects 361
Total lettable space in sqm 1,162,965

Total lettable space in sqm IMMOWEST 2,306,680

1) incl. parking spaces (rounded).
2) The objects are grouped according to their primarily use.

Economic environment and segment orientation

The IMMOWEST segment primarily includes IMMOFINANZ’s activities in Germany and Swit-
zerland. With GDP growth of 2.5% and 3.3% both economies were on par with the European aver-
age; Germany in particular appears to have temporarily overcome its structural economic problems.
The IMMOWEST portfolio is characterised by a comparatively high proportion of logistics space,
which is attributed to the successful performance of the subsidiary Deutsche Lagerhaus. At 18.2%
the share of residential space in the overall portfolio also has a stabilising effect. Office space ac-
counts for 21.5%, retail for 4.9%. All total, the proportion of lettable space owned by IMMOWEST
was increased by 17.8% to 2,306,680 sqm during the reporting year.

Parking . 1.0%
Recreation/hotel 33% .
Retall 49% ‘
Residential 182% .
,,,,,,,,,,, 51.1% . lLogistics
Offices 21.5%

1) The lettable space of mixed-use objects was
proportionally allocated to the sectors.



Other countries 42.2%

Business development - IMMOEAST segment

Key data on the IMMOWEST segment

Segment Reporting

Germany

2007/08

2006/07

Change in %

Revenues in TEUR

Thereof rental income in TEUR

Results of operations (EBITDA) in TEUR
Operating profit (EBIT) in TEUR

Cash EBIT in TEUR

Cash EBIT margin in %

Segment assets in TEUR

Segment liabilities in TEUR

Lettable space as a % of the total portfolio
Fair value of properties

incl. contracted investments in EUR mill.
Fair value as a % of the total portfolio

79,434.9
66,896.5
45,804.4
104,709.4
33,072.1
41.6%
2,010,902.8
1,239,667.6
17.2%

2,296.5
14.8%

36,174.4
30,179.3
10,215.5
-21,223.5
3,915.6
10.8%
1,669,469.7
1,055,588.4
17.3%

2,794.0
17.2%

744.6%
285.2%
20.5%
17.4%
-0.6%

-17.8%
-10.6%

The IMMOWEST segment increased its revenues 119.6% to EUR 79.4 million in the 2007/08 fi-
nancial year. At EUR 66.9 million the rental income reported was 121.7% above the level of the
previous year. The increase was strongest in the logistics sector, which accounts 61.4% of the

segment’s revenues with rental income of EUR 41.1 million. Due to the disproportionately low

growth of operating expenses and despite even lower other operating income, EBITDA improved
348.4% to EUR 45.8 million. Revaluation results for the reporting year improved from minus EUR
12.0 million to plus EUR 65.2 million. As a consequence, EBIT rose to EUR 104.7 million after
negative EUR 21.2 million the year before. After an adjustment for non-cash items, cash EBIT of
EUR 33.1 million was generated after EUR 3.9 million the year before, accompanied by an improve-
ment in the cash EBIT margin from 10.8% to 41.6%.

Recreation/hotel 21% .
Parking 81% .
Logistics/retail 20.3%

Residential
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Three regional segments

IMMOAUSTRIA

IMMOWEST

IMMOEAST

Strong GDP growth in
Central, Eastern and South-
Eastern Europe

A. General information

IMMOFINANZ AG serves as the holding company for IMMOAUSTRIA, IMMOEAST and
IMMOWEST, the three segments of the IMMOFINANZ Group. The primary activity of the
company is the acquisition and management of investments in other enterprises.

The strategic development of IMMOAUSTRIA is influenced by two trends: portfolio optimisation
and the realisation of appreciation through the sale of properties as well as an increased focus on
the expansion of the housing construction subsidiary BUWOG.

The IMMOWEST segment has shifted its focus increasingly to the German market and is continuing
to pursue its selective growth strategy. The focal point of activities is formed by the logistics sub-
sidiary Deutsche Lagerhaus, which is expanding existing objects and also acquiring new locations.

IMMOEAST is diversified through two different types of segments: the segmentation based on
region comprises CEE (Hungary, Czech Republic, Poland, Slovakia and Estonia), SEE (Romania,
Bulgaria, Serbia, Croatia, Bosnia and Slovenia) and CIS (Russia and Ukraine), while the segmenta-
tion based on sector reflects the various uses or categories of properties such as offices, logistics,
commercial and residential. IMMOEAST does not manage car parks and parking spaces as a
separate area of business because the revenues generated by these activities are generally related to
the rental of offices or logistics properties.

The company’s most important activity is the acquisition and management of investments in other
enterprises. Therefore, the development of business in these investments and the earnings they
generate are of significant importance for an evaluation of IMMOFINANZ. For this reason,
additional details on the development of business and the results of the group are provided in the
following sections in accordance with § 267 (3) of the Austrian Commercial Code and in connec-
tion with § 251 (3) of the Austrian Commercial Code. The same applies to the description of events
that occurred after the balance sheet date as well as the use of financial instruments and the result-
ing risks.

B. The economic environment

The development of revenues and earnings at IMMOFINANZ is influenced not only by changes
in the property portfolio, but also by economic trends in the countries where the group’s subsidiaries
are active. The effects of economic fluctuations on the demand for space in the individual sectors
of the property market differ widely. However, the development of real GDP represents a viable
indicator for the evaluation of demand. In comparison with economic growth in the West European
EU-15 countries — which recorded an average growth of 2.7% in 2007 according to Eurostat — the
economies in Central, Eastern and South-Eastern Europe continued the extremely robust growth
recorded in previous years. The Czech Republic and Poland reported growth of 6.5% and Slovakia
10.4% for 2007, while Hungary was the only country in this region to register a year-on-year
decline (-1.3%). The prior year results were also matched in Slovenia (+6.1%), Croatia (+5.6%),
Serbia (+7.5%), Bulgaria (+6.2%) and Romania (+6.0%). Russia and Ukraine also clearly outpaced
the West European average with increases of 8.1% and 7.6%, respectively. The following com-
parison of per capita GDP underscores the future growth potential inherent in these markets.
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In addition to the risks associated with general economic developments, IMMOFINANZ - as an
international corporation — is also exposed to various financial risks. The major financial risks for
the group are related to possible changes in foreign exchange rates, interest rates and share prices
as well as the credit standing and solvency of the customers and business partners of IMMO-
FINANZ. An extensive discussion of risk management is provided in section G of this management
report and in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

C. Financial and non-financial performance indicators
(§ 267 (2) 2 of the Austrian Commercial Code)

IMMOFINANZ recorded sound development during the 2007/08 financial year. Consolidated
revenues totalled EUR 670.8 million, which represents an increase of 29.3% over 2006/07. EBITDA
rose from EUR 229.1 million to EUR 301.4 million.

Revaluation results fell by 50.6% year-on-year to EUR 370.0 million. Net profit for the period to-
talled EUR 375.0 million as of 30 April 2008. Gross cash flow increased 46.7% to EUR 248.8 mil-
lion, which represents a cash EBIT margin of 35.5%.

The number of properties owned directly or indirectly by IMMOFINANZ increased from
2,637 to 3,078 during the reporting year, raising the lettable space in the portfolio by 18.3% to
over 13.4 million sqm.

IMMOFINANZ had no research and development expenditures during the reporting year (§ 267 (3) 3
of the Austrian Commercial Code).

During the 2007/08 financial year, IMMOFINANZ employed a total workforce of 708 in various
subsidiaries.
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D. Investments made during the 2007/08 financial year

The consolidation range expanded from 463 to 617 companies in 2007/08. The major investments
made during the reporting year are described in the following section.

IMMOAUSTRIA Segment

In 2007/08 the consolidation range of IMMOAUSTRIA was increased by the acquisition of 100%
of the shares in Stephanshof Liegenschaftsverwaltungsgesellschaft mbH and VIV Gebiudeerrich-
tungs GmbH and 50% of the shares in “Heller Fabrik” Liegenschaftsverwertungs GmbH as well
as the purchase of a 50% stake in Frankonia Eurobau Buwog Bielniki Sp. z o. o. through BUWOG
CEE GmbH. The acquisition of this Polish company represents the first foreign project for
BUWOG. It involves a residential complex with 470 condominium apartments in Posen, which is
under construction with a German developer and is scheduled for completion in 2009.

Stephanshof Liegenschaftsverwaltungsgesellschaft mbH and VIV Gebdudeerrichtungs GmbH were
fully consolidated by IMMOFINANZ as of 1 August 2007 and 31 October 2007, respectively.

The 50% stake in Frankonia Eurobau Buwog Bielniki Sp. z o. 0. was acquired as of 6 March 2008.

IMMOWEST Segment
A 50% stake in FRANKONIA Eurobau DUS Plaza GmbH was acquired as of 20 September 2007.

During the third quarter of 2007/08 IMMOFINANZ purchased 90.01% of the shares in three
further companies of the City Box Group through City BOX Holding BV, a subsidiary in which it
holds a stake of 90.01%. The remaining shares are held by management, which also includes the
founders of the company. City Box is one of the leading firms in the branch and operates 14 self-
storage depots near major cities in the Netherlands. City Box plans to open ten additional centres
over the coming years, also in close proximity to large cities in this country.

IMMOEAST Segment / regional subsegment CEE (Central and Eastern Europe)

The expansion of the STOP.SHOP. retail park chain continued during 2007/08. Development work
on six facilities in the Czech Republic began on 16 July 2007; three development projects in Slovakia
and six development projects in Poland were also started during the reporting year. The develop-
ment projects in Lucenec and Zvolen, which were started in Slovakia during 2006/07, were com-
pleted at the end of March 2008 and IMMOEAST subsequently acquired the remaining shares in
these two companies. The development project in Ruzomberok, which was also started during the
past year, is scheduled for completion in autumn 2008. Two STOP.SHOP. projects in Hungary
were completed during 2007/08, and the holdings in these companies were raised to 100% as of
31 January 2008 and 15 February 2008.

Project companies for the construction of the Rakoluby logistics centre were founded on 29 August
2007 and 6 December 2007. This facility will be built in two phases: work on the first phase should
be completed during autumn 2008 and the second phase in summer 2009. This object is located
north of Bratislava, Slovakia, and will have nearly 50,000 sqm of lettable space. The Rakoluby
centre represents the next step in the steady expansion of the IMMOEAST logistics portfolio.
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In addition to the above-mentioned project in Slovakia, development also started on a logistics
centre in the Czech Republic during the fourth quarter of the reporting year. Final Management
s.1.0., in which IMMOEAST holds a stake of 70%, is developing five properties with net logistics
space of roughly 153,000 sqm in the Czech city of Plzen. These objects are scheduled for comple-
tion in two phases during 2009.

IMMOEAST acquired 100% of the shares in the Polish Taifun Real Sp. z 0.0. as of 31 July 2007.
This transaction expanded the group’s portfolio to include the Taifun Office Building in Warsaw,
which has approx. 9,000 sqm of lettable space.

The Salzburg Center, a fully occupied office property in Warsaw, was sold to SEB Global Property,
a German mutual property fund, at the end of April 2008.

IMMOEAST acquired 100% of the shares in Atrium Park Kft. as of 31 October 2007. This trans-
action transferred another prime office building to the portfolio in Hungary.

The office segment in the Czech Republic was expanded during the first quarter of 2007/08 with
the completion of the fourth section of the BB Centrum complex in Prague and the acquisition of
100% of the shares in BB Centrum Gamma a.s. This object has more than 30,000 sqm and is
fully let for the next 10 years.

The 50% IMMOEAST subsidiary S+B CEE Beteiligungsverwaltungs GmbH acquired the remain-
ing 50% stake in AB Stetkov4 a.s., which is located in Prague. This transaction also transferred the
Stetkové office building in full to S+B CEE Beteiligungsverwaltungs GmbH, which plans to demol-
ish the current building and construct a new facility at this site. The new building will have more
than double the volume of lettable space and is scheduled for completion in 2011.

Akvamarin Beta s.r.o. was sold to SEB Immobilien-Investment GmbH in March 2008. This trans-
action also represented the sale of the Andel Park B office property in Prague.

Activities in the residential segment were expanded in August and December 2007 through the
following acquisitions: A 50% stake was acquired in Vertano Residence Sp. z 0.0. as of 1 August
2007. IMMOEAST also acquired 89.89% of Vertano Residence Sp. z o.0. 1 Sp.k., which plans to
construct a residential complex in Lodz, Poland. As of 21 December 2007 50% of the shares were
acquired in Residea Ltd., which owns five Polish project companies. These joint venture are devel-
oping a total of 504 housing units with more than 32,000 sqm of lettable space in two projects that
will be started during June and October 2008.

IMMOEAST Segment / regional subsegment CIS (Community of Independent States)
IMMOEAST acquired a 50% stake in the TOV Evro-Luno-Park in Kiev, Ukraine, as of 5 March
2008. This company is developing an office building with approx. 85,000 sqm of lettable space,
which will be completed in three phases. Planning is currently in progress for the first phase, with
construction expected to begin during the first quarter of 2009. The investment volume for this
project will total approx. EUR 250 million.
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In the retail sector, IMMOEAST purchased a 75% stake in the GoodZone property during July
2007. This project involves the construction of a shopping centre with approx. 146,000 sqm of
lettable space, which will stand out with its unconventional design and represent one of the largest
facilities of its kind in Moscow. Completion is planned for mid-2009.

The logistics portfolio in the CIS segment was also enlarged during the reporting year. In April
2008 IMMOEAST purchased 100% of the shares in Dalerise Ltd. and thereby also 100% of
Valecorp Ltd., which owns a fully occupied logistics centre in Shushary, a suburb of St. Petersburg,
Russia.

In addition, IMMOEAST has been financing the construction of the Tomilino logistics park in the
southeast of Moscow, Russia, since autumn 2007. This object will have approx. 52,000 sqm and
should be completed in late summer 2008.

IMMOEAST Segment / regional subsegment SEE (South-Eastern Europe)

In the retail segment, IMMOEAST acquired 50% of the shares in VTI Varna Trade Invest OOD
as of 24 July 2007. This company is developing the Varna Shopping Center in Bulgaria with more
than 54,000 sqm of lettable space. The opening is scheduled to take place during the third quarter
of 2010. IMMOEAST also purchased a 49% stake in the Bulgarian Bulreal EAD during the report-
ing year. This company owns investments in two firms that operate a multi-purpose market in
Sofia, Bulgaria, with approx. 79,000 sqm of lettable space.

As of 18 July 2007 IMMOEAST purchased a 75% stake in the Romanian S.C. Red Project one
s.r.l. This transaction increased the group’s portfolio to include the Arad Retail Park, which has
approx. 42,000 sqm of retail space and was completed in June 2008. IMMOEAST also acquired
a 75% stake in S.C. Red Project Two s.r.l. during the reporting year. This company is developing
the Baia Mare Retail Park in Romania, a specialty mall that includes a shopping gallery. After
completion, IMMOEAST intends to purchase the remaining 25% of the shares.

In addition to these two projects, IMMOEAST also acquired 75% of the Harborside Hotel
in Romania during 2007/08. This project involves the development of a complex with approx.
15,600 sqm of retail space and a hotel tower with approx. 12,100 sqm, both of which should be
completed during the third quarter of 2009.

IMMOEAST acquired the remaining 85% of the shares in Polus Transilvania Companie de Investitii
S.A. during the reporting year. This company owns a shopping centre in the northwest of Romania
with approx. 60,000 sqm of net lettable space and a current occupancy rate of 98.5%.

In the residential segment, a 50% stake was purchased in Caterata Ltd during the third quarter.
This company plans to develop roughly 4,500 apartments in Romania, Poland and Latvia as part
of a joint venture.
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As of 24 January 2008 IMMOEAST acquired several projects from the Longbridge Development
Group. This portfolio includes four residential projects with approx. 300,000 sqm of lettable space,
two commercial objects with approx. 90,000 sqm and an office building with approx. 30,000 sqm.

IMMOEAST enlarged its portfolio in the office segment during 2007/08 through the acquisition
of 100% of the S-Park Business Center. This property is a first-class office building in Bucharest,
which has more than 34,000 sqm of lettable space.

As of 22 June 2007 IMMOEAST acquired 100% of the shares in Real Habitation s.r.l., which
plans to construct a number of office buildings in Bucharest. The first step will involve the extension
of the existing Iride Business Park to include an additional 63,000 sqm.

As of 2 May 2007 IMMOEAST expanded its logistics portfolio in the SEE segment with the ac-
quisition of 100% of the shares in S.C. Dacian Second s.r.l. This company is constructing a logistics
centre in Pantelimon near Bucharest, Romania, with approx. 53,000 sqm of space.

IMMOEAST acquired a diversified portfolio from Yapi ve Kredi Bankasi (YKB), a major Turkish

bank, together with two partners in mid-2007 and thereby entered the emerging property market
in Turkey. This property portfolio comprises 425 objects.

E. Analysis of revenues and earnings for the
2007/08 financial year

The following table presents summarised data from the IMMOFINANZ income statement as of
30 April 2008 and 30 April 2007 in accordance with the fair value model defined by IAS 40.33:

Income statement — summary

All amounts in TEUR 2007/08 2006/07 Change in %
Allamountsin TELR 6708313 518,883.0 29.3%
Revaluation of properties 370,027.5 749,716.3 50.6%
Operating profit EBI) 5144506 887,694.4  -42.0%
Financialresuts 40,813.6 258751 57.7%
Earnings before tax (EBT) 5552642 913,569.5  -39.2%
Income taxes -180,226.4 -188,701.8 4.5%
Net profit for the period 3750378 724,867.7  -48.3%
Earnings per shareinEUR 0.66 .03 -35.9%
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Revenues

IMMOFINANZ recorded revenues of TEUR 670,831.3 for 2007/08. In comparison with the
prior year, this represents an increase of TEUR 151,948.3 or 29.3%. The rental income included
in revenues rose by TEUR 122,378.8 or 32.3% to TEUR 501,301.6.

Development of revenues and rental income by primary segment

All amounts in TEUR 2007/08
IMMOAUSTRIA  213,696.7
IIMMOEAST 220,708.4
IMMOWEST 66,896.5
Consolidation 0.0
Total  501,301.6
IMMOEAST becomes

strongest segment

Higher rental income at
IMMOAUSTRIA

Strong growth at
IMMOWEST

Structure of

rental income 2007/08
by primary segment

in %

Rental income Revenues
2006/07 Change in % 2007/08 2006/07 Change in %
2025923 11,1044 5.5% 294,183.1  289,788.2  4,3948 1.5%
146,151.2 74,557.2 51.0% 297,213.3 192,920.4 104,292.9 54.1%
30,179.3 36,717.2 121.7% 79,434.9 36,174.4 43,260.5 119.6%
0.0 0.0 0.0% 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0%
3789228 1223788  323% 670,831.3  518,883.0 151,9483  29.3%

IMMOAUSTRIA recorded TEUR 213,696.7 of rental income and TEUR 294,183.1 of revenues
for the reporting year, and for the first time was not the strongest driver for revenues in the
IMMOFINANZ Group. IMMOEAST surpassed the two other segments with rental income of
TEUR 220,708.4 and revenues of TEUR 297,213.3. IMMOWEST registered an increase of 119.6%
in revenues to TEUR 79,434.9 (11.8% of group revenues).

The development of revenues in the IMMOEAST segment was supported by the acquisition of
several properties in 2006/07, which made a full 12-month contribution to rental income for the
first time during the reporting year. The focal point of the portfolio is formed primarily by office,
logistics and commercial properties.

Revenues in the IMMOAUSTRIA segment remained constant at the prior year level with a plus of
1.5%. Rental income rose by 5.5%, primarily as the result of organic growth.

The increase in revenues in the IMMOWEST segment was driven above all by the office, logistics
and commercial sectors. The strongest growth was recorded by City Box and Deutsche Lagerhaus
in the logistics and commercial area as well as the Friesen and Andreas quarter in the office sector.

The rental income generated by properties that were part of the IMMOFINANZ portfolio in
2006/07 rose by 5.07% year-on-year.

IMMOWEST

IMMOEAST

IMMOAUSTRIA
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Structure of rental income by segment

All amounts in TEUR 2007/08 2006/07 Change in %
offices  173,6935 124,9448 48,7487  39.0%
Logistics/commercial 1854511 122,4103 . 63,0408  51.5%
Recreation/hotel 8,657.1 6,880.9 17762 258%
Residential 1093077 104,9859 43217 . 4.1%
Parking 24,1922 19,7009 44913  22.8%
Rentalincome 501,301.6 378,922.8 122,3788 32.3%
Sale of inventories 71770 10,1163  -2,939.4  -29.1%
Operating costs charged to tenants 1442930 114,861.9 29,4311 25.6%
Otherrevenues 18,059.7 14,9820 30778 20.5%
fotal 6708313 518,883.0 151,9483 29.3%

2005/06 2006/07 2007/08

An analysis of the secondary segments shows that growth was concentrated in the office and logis-
tics/commercial areas. The revenues generated by logistics and commercial properties rose by
TEUR 63,040.8 or 51.5% in 2007/08. Revenues from the rental of office space increased
TEUR 48,748.7 or 39.0%. The residential sector, the third largest secondary segment for IMMO-
FINANZ, recorded a plus of 4.1% in revenues and was responsible for 21.8% of group revenues
for the reporting year. The relatively low revenue growth in the residential segment was influenced
by the already high level of occupancy in the BUWOG/ESG properties IMMOAUSTRIA segment),
which formed the major part of revenues for this secondary segment.

Revaluation results
Revaluation results include all increases and decreases in the value of investment properties. In com-
parison with the previous year, revaluation results fell 50.6% to TEUR 370,027.5.
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The decline in revaluation results originated primarily in the IMMOEAST segment and resulted
from two major factors: the value of the Euro declined in relation to the Czech Krone, Slovakian
Krone and Polish Zloty during the reporting year and this change in foreign exchange rates led to
an impairment charge, even though the value of numerous properties exceeded the comparable
prior year value in Euro. In addition, the effects of the US credit crisis on the property markets in
Central and Eastern Europe were manifested in a noticeable decline in the number of individual
property transactions as well as a lower transaction volume. In contrast to the past years, a yield
expansion was noted throughout Central and Eastern Europe. Whereas the yields used for prop-
erty valuation ranged from 5.25% to 6.5% in the previous year, the comparable figures for 2007/08
were 25 to 150 basis points lower.

Revaluation results by segment

Revaluation results

All amounts in TEUR 2007/08 2006/07 Change in %
IMMOAUSTRIA ~ 293,726.9 263,116.1 30,6108  11.6%
IMMOEAST 11,090.1 493,095.1 -482,005.0 -97.8%
IMMOWEST 65,210.5 -6,494.9 71,705.4

Total 370,027.5 749,7163  -379,688.8  -50.6%

Revaluation results in the IMMOAUSTRIA segment totalled TEUR 293,726.9 for the reporting
year, which represents an increase of 11.6% over 2006/07. These results were recorded above
all in the BUWOG/ESG portfolio. In the IMMOEAST segment revaluation results fell by
TEUR 482,005.0 or 97.8% due to the unfavourable development of exchange rates and the effects
of the yield expansion. The IMMOWEST segment reported a sound increase in revaluation results,
which rose by TEUR 71,705.4 over the prior year. This increase was related primarily to the City
Box, Deutsche Lagerhaus and Friesen and Andreas Quarter properties that were completed during
the reporting year.

A detailed presentation of revaluation results is provided in under point 3.1 of the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Other operating income

Other operating income totalled TEUR 126,999.5 for 2007/08, which reflects an increase of 25.2%
over the prior year (2006/07: TEUR 101,461.5). Income from the disposal of investment properties
was responsible for 46.5% of this position in 2006/07, but declined to 16.4% for the reporting year.
In contrast, income from deconsolidations rose from TEUR 4,630.3 in 2006/07 to TEUR 27,008.9.
The sales concluded during 2007/08 included the Salzburg Center in Warsaw (Salzburg Center
Development S.A.) and the Andel Park B in Prague (Akvamarin Beta s.r.0.).

Income from the reversal of negative goodwill equalled TEUR 37,341.8 in 2007/08 (2006/07:
TEUR 5,489.5). Of this amount, EUR 27,099.8 resulted from an increase in the stake owned in
IMMOEAST AG. Income from the reversal of provisions totalled TEUR 13,152.9 for the reporting
year (2006/07: TEUR 3,357.5) and represented 10.4% of other operating income. This amount
includes TEUR 8,840.2 from a provision created in 2006/07 for transaction costs associated with
the capital increase, which was not utilised in full.

Depreciation and amortisation

This position is comprised primarily of impairment charges to goodwill, which result chiefly from
the discounting of deferred taxes that is not permitted under IFRS, as well as the depreciation
of tangible assets. Depreciation and amortisation rose by TEUR 65,809.1 or 72.2% to
TEUR 156,974.4 in 2007/08 (2006/07: TEUR 91,165.3). This development resulted largely from
an increase in impairment charges to goodwill, which rose to TEUR 139,441.9. These write-downs
were required primarily to reflect insufficient undisclosed reserves (IAS 16) or insufficient revalua-
tion results. In cases where goodwill had been assigned to a property that was written down, this
goodwill was also reduced.

The impairment charge recognised to the goodwill in Berga Investment Limited was related to in-
sufficient undisclosed reserves in the GoodZone development project, one of the largest shopping
centres in Moscow, Russia. The impairment charge recognised to goodwill in Wakelin Promotions
Limited and Brno Estates a.s. was based on a decline in the revaluation results for the Golden
Babylon I and Brno Business Park I&II. Detailed information on the impairment testing of good-
will is provided under point 3.2.1.3 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Expenses related to properties

Expenses related to properties consist for the most part of operating costs and other directly allo-
cated expenses. These expenses rose by 28.3% to TEUR 236,274.4 in 2007/08, which is slightly less
than the growth in rental income (+29.3%).

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses are comprised of administrative charges, consulting fees, taxes on prop-
erty and legal transactions as well as commissions and advertising expenses. These expenses rose
by 29.5% to TEUR 237,146.8 in 2007/08.

Legal, auditing and consulting expenses increased TEUR 10,983.4 or 68.9%. This development
was triggered above all by higher fees for legal and tax consulting services, which were required to
meet the rapidly changing legal framework in the IMMOEAST markets. The increase in the
number of managed companies from 463 to 617 was also reflected in higher auditing expenses.
These expenses can be expected to increase further over the coming years.

Taxes and duties increased 40.8% to TEUR 9,368.6, primarily as a result of building taxes charged
in numerous Central and East European countries.

Adpvertising expenses rose sharply by 117.8% to TEUR 13,529.9. The major component of these
costs was related to activities in the investor relations area, which were expanded during the report-
ing year to meet the needs of investors for increased information. The cost of expert opinions also
rose by a substantial TEUR 8,281.5 to TEUR 11,947.2 following an increase in the frequency of
expert opinions, since all IMMOEAST properties are now valued twice each year by external
experts. In subsequent periods, the expenses for property valuation will decline by roughly 30%
for objects owned by IMMOFINANZ during the 2007/08 financial year.

Results of operations (EBITDA and cash EBIT margin)
The completion of properties in the IMMOEAST segment as well as cost reductions and improved
asset management supported a 31.5% increase in EBITDA from TEUR 229,143.4 to TEUR 301,397.5.

Comparison of EBIT and revaluation results by segment

All amounts in TEUR 2007/08
IMMOAUSTRIA  120,897.1
IMMOEAST 144,953.2
IMMOWEST 45,804.4
Consolidation -10,251.2

Total 301,397.5

EBITDA Revaluation results
Share in % Share in %
2006/07 Change in % 2007/08 2006/07 2007 2008
151,566.1 -30,675.0 -20.2% 293,726.9 263,116.1 243.0% 173.6%
92,009.9 52,943.3 57.5% 11,090.1 493,095.1 7.7% 535.9%
10,215.5 33,588.9 348.4% 65,210.5 -6,494.9 142.4% -63.6%
-24,648.1 14,396.9 -58.4% 0.0 0.0 0.0% 0.0%
229,143.4 72,254.1 31.5% 370,027.5 749,716.3 122.8% 327.2%
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IMMOFINANZ uses the cash EBIT margin to evaluate the cash earnings generated by its business
activities. This calculation is not based on a detailed cash flow statement, but compares the cash
components of operating profit (EBIT) to total earnings.
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The cash EBIT margin declined from 39.3% to 35.5% during the reporting year. An analysis
of the individual segments shows an increase in the cash EBIT margin for IMMOEAST and
IMMOWEST as well as a decline for IMMOAUSTRIA.

Cash EBIT
IMMOAUSTRIA IMMOEAST IMMOWEST

All amounts in TEUR 2007/08 2006/07 2007/08 2006/07 2007/08 2006/07
Operating profit (EBIT) 404,162.4  393,2193 15,0107  541,288.7  104,709.4  -21,223.5
Revaluation of properties -293,726.9  -263,116.1 -11,090.1 -493,095.1 -65,210.5 6,494.9
Reversal of negative goodwill -1,872.6 0.0 -427.4 -5,015.2 -7,944.5 -474.4
Depreciation and amortisation 10,455.6 21,462.9 141,032.6 43,816.3 6,305.5 24,944.1
Income taxes paid -2,005.9 -917.8 -9,021.9 -13,062.8 -4,787.7 -5,825.6
CashEBIT 117,012.6  150,648.3 135,342.4  73,932.0  33,072.2  3,915.6
Revenues 294,183.0  289,788.2 297,213.3 192,920.4 79,434.9 36,174.4
Cash EBIT margin 39.8% 52.0% 45.5% 38.3% 41.6% 10.8%
(continued) Other and consolidation IMMOFINANZ Group

All amounts TEUR 2007/08 2006/07 2007/08 2006/07
Operating profit (BT -9,431.9 - 25,5001 514,450.6 887,694.4
Revaluation of properties 0.0 0.0 -370,027.5 -749,716.3
Reversal of negative goodwill 27,097.3 0.0 -37,341.8 -5,489.5
Depreciation and amortisation -819.3 942.0 156,974.4 91,165.3
Income taxes paid -1,930.9 -3.4 -26,051.7 -19,809.6
CasheslT . -39,281.9  -24,651.6 2380040 203,844.3
Revenues 0.0 0.0 670,831.3 518,883.0

Cash EBIT margin 0.0% 0.0% 35.5% 39.3%
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Financial results

IMMOFINANZ recorded an improvement in financial results from TEUR 25,875.1 in 2006/07 to
TEUR 40,813.6 for the reporting year. This growth resulted, among others, from an increase in
interest income as well as higher income generated by associated companies in the IMMOEAST
segment. Changes in foreign exchange rates in the individual segments had an impact of
TEUR 22,111.7 (2006/07: TEUR 32,591.8) on financial results. The development of financial re-
sults was also influenced by the measurement of financial instruments at fair value through profit
or loss and revaluations of TEUR 21,526.9 (2006/07 17,852.7) in the IMMOWEST and IMMO-
EAST segments as well as distributions of TEUR 55,519.6 (2006/07: 41,922.8) that were recorded
for the most part in the IMMOWEST segment.

Financial results by segment

All amounts in TEUR 2007/08 2006/07 Change in %
IMMOAUSTRIA 1399211 113,502.5 26,4186 23.3%
IMMOEAST 250,986.5 104,163.5 146,823.0 141.0%
IMMOWEST 23,179.2 48,669.8 -25,490.6 -52.4%
Consolidation -93,431.0 -13,455.7 -79,975.2 594.4%
Tt s08136 25,8751 14,9386 57.7%

The above table shows that financial results — with the exception of foreign exchange effects — are
generated to a limited extent in the operating segments and realised primarily at the holding com-
pany level.

Income taxes
This item includes income tax expense as well as provisions for deferred taxes.

Income tax expense for the group declined from TEUR -188,701.8 in the prior year to
TEUR -180,226.4 for 2007/08, but the group tax rate rose from 20.7% to 32.5%. The group tax
rate reflects the various tax rates applicable in the countries in which IMMOFINANZ is active,
and is dependent on the earnings generated in each country as well as estimates for the ability to
utilise tax loss carryforwards. If the calculation of the group tax rate were based solely on the ac-
tual income taxes of TEUR -26,051.7 paid for the reporting year, the tax rate would equal 4.7%.
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Financial position
The following table shows a summarised cash flow statement for the IMMOFINANZ Group as of
30 April 2008 and 30 April 2007:

Cash flow statement — summary

All amounts in TEUR 2007/08 2006/07 Change in %
Earnings before tax €6BT) 5552642 913,569.5  -39.2%
Revaluation of properties / depreciation and amortisation -187,739.3 -667,380.4 -71.9%
Gain/(loss) on the sale of non-current assets -53,590.4 -61,623.5 -13.0%
Income taxes paid -26,051.7 -19,809.6 31.5%
Other non-cash income/(expenses) -6,715.8 23,480.5 -128.6%
Grosscashfow 2487988 169,631.9 46.7%
Cash flow from operating activites ~ 313,159.4  -357563 -
Cash flow from investing activites -2,047,948.6  -1,924,423.1 6.4%
Cash flow from financing activites 1,437,459.7  3,038,797.0  -52.7%
Differences arising from foreign currency translation -100,469.2 44,942.5 -323.6%
Change in cash and cash equivalents ~ -397,798.7 11235601 -135.4%
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 1,657,052.0 533,491.9 210.6%
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 1,259,253.3 1,657,052.0 -24.0%
Change in cash and cash equivalents ~ -397,798.7 1,123,560.1 -135.4%

Gross cash flow

Gross cash flow shows the strength of a company’s operational earnings. However, the completion
of development projects and ongoing measures to reduce costs have made this indicator less impor-
tant than earnings data for an accurate evaluation of performance. The significant increase
of 46.7% in gross cash flow clearly underscores the efficiency of the measures implemented by
management.

Cash flow from operating activities

Cash flow from operating activities is based on gross cash flow, and includes the changes in the
various components of working capital. The positive development of this indicator in 2007/08 was
supported by an increase in other liabilities, in particular other financial liabilities and the related
interest expense.

Cash flow from investing activities

Cash flow from investing activities clearly reflects the expansion strategy of IMMOFINANZ, with
an increase of 6.4% from TEUR 1,924,423.1 in 2006/07 to TEUR 2,047,948.6 in 2007/08. The
most important positions were the acquisition of property companies for TEUR 832,995.6, the
purchase of investment properties for a total of TEUR 795,328.6 and the acquisition of financial
assets for TEUR 547,269.2.
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Cash flow from financing activities

Cash flow from financing activities is comprised primarily of net proceeds from the IMMOEAST
capital increase (TEUR 1,328,321.8) as well as the increase in and repayment of financial liabilities,
including the TEUR 750,000.0 convertible bond that was issued in November 2007.

Financing

IMMOFINANZ currently has an equity ratio of 50.6% and gearing of 59.3%. This standing is
based in part on the capital increase that was carried out during the previous financial year.
Information on the conditions of financial liabilities is provided in the notes to the consolidated

financial statements.

Asset position
The following table presents a condensed balance sheet as of 30 April 2008 and 30 April 2007:

Balance sheet as of 30 April 2008 — summary

All amounts in TEUR 30 April 2008 30 April 2007 Change in %
Investment property 9,636,190.4 ! 8,221,528.8  17.2%
Property under construction 849,490.9 400,502.6 112.1%
Other non-current assets 2,753,657.7 1,698,641.7 62.1%

Non-current assets 13,239,339.1 10,320,673.1

Currentassets 2,329,060.7  2,400,970.1  -3.0%
ASSETS 15,568,399.8  12,721,6432 22.4%
Equity 7,877,211.1 6,515,334.3 20.9%
Financial liabilities 5,464,402.3 4,314,372.6 26.7%
Other non-current liabilities 1,257,845.7 1,131,710.5 11.1%
Non-current liabilities 6,722,248.0 5,446,083.1 23.4%
Current liabilites ~ 968,940.7 760,2258 27.5%
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 15,568,399.8  12,721,643.2 22.4%

Non-current assets

Non-current assets increased TEUR 2,918,666.0 or 28.3% to TEUR 13,239,339.1 in 2007/08.
This growth was driven primarily by the steady pursuit of the IMMOFINANZ expansion strategy.
Investment activities were concentrated on the portfolio properties and development projects. In
addition, the group strengthened its focus on the purchase of strategic investments in development
companies such as Adama Holding Public Ltd. in order to improve the diversification of risk and,
at the same time, gain access to new projects.

Current assets
Current assets declined by TEUR 71,909.3 to TEUR 2,329,060.7.
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F. Information on equity
(§ 243a (1) of the Austrian Commercial Code)

The share capital of IMMOFINANZ totalled EUR 476,527,653.59 (2006/07: TEUR 476,527.7)
as of 30 April 2008 and is divided into 459,001,443 (2006/07: 459,001,443) zero par value shares.

The classification of shares as of 30 April 2008 is as follows:

Share capital Share capital

Number of shares EUR Number of shares EUR

All amounts in TEUR 30 April 2008 30 April 2008 30 April 2007 30 April 2007
Registered shares 6 6.23 6 6.23
Bearer shares 459,001,437 476,527,647.36 459,001,437 476,527,647.36
Total 459,001,443 476,527,653.59 459,001,443 476,527,653.59

The registered shares may only be transferred with the approval of the company. Each bearer share
carries the right to nominate one member to the Supervisory Board.

The annual general meeting on 27 September 2007 authorised the Executive Board, contingent
upon the approval of the Supervisory Board, to issue convertible bonds, within a period of five
years beginning on the date this resolution was passed. These convertible bonds will carry ex-
change or subscription rights for up to 151,060,596 shares of bearer common stock and have a
proportional share of up to EUR 156,828,594.90 in share capital. The convertible bonds may also
be issued in multiple segments, with or without the exclusion of subscription rights. Furthermore,
the Executive Board is authorised, contingent upon the approval of the Supervisory Board, to
determine all other conditions for the issue and conversion of the convertible bonds. This annual
general meeting also authorised a conditional increase of up to EUR 156,828,594.90 in share
capital through the issue of up to 151,060,596 shares of new bearer stock to grant conversion or
subscription rights to the subscribers of the convertible bonds.

A total of 7,500 convertible bonds with a nominal value of EUR 100,000.00 each were issued on
19 November 2007. The interest rate for the bonds was set at 1.25% per year, and the term will
end on 19 November 2017. Each convertible bond with a nominal value of EUR 100,000.00 carries
subscription rights to 10,799 shares of new bearer common stock in IMMOFINANZ. The bond-
holders may exercise their conversion rights at any time between 2 January 2008 and 9 November
2017 by signing a statement of conversion. Furthermore, the bondholders have the right to put
their entire holdings of convertible bonds or individual bond certificates prematurely between
19 November 2012 and 19 November 2014, in keeping with a notice period of at least 10 days.
The company is entitled to call the bonds in full but not in part at any time on or after 3 December
2014 in keeping with a minimum notice period of 30 days and a maximum notice period of
90 days when the price of the IMMOFINANZ share exceeds 130% of the applicable conversion
price on at least 20 trading days within a period of at least 30 trading days, which do not end less
than five trading days before the call announcement.

The annual general meeting on 28 September 2006 authorised the Executive Board to issue convert-
ible bonds with a total nominal value of up to EUR 750,000,000.00 within a period of five years,
contingent upon approval by the Supervisory Board. These convertible bonds will carry exchange
or subscription rights for up to 55,940,125 shares of bearer common stock and have a propor-
tional share of up to EUR 58,076,106.11 in share capital. The subscription rights of shareholders
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were excluded. This authorisation also allows the Executive Board to carry out a conditional
increase of up to EUR 58,076,106.11 in share capital through the issue of up to 55,940,125 shares
of new bearer common stock to grant conversion or subscription rights to the holders of the
convertible bonds.

In accordance with this authorisation, 7,500 convertible bonds with a nominal value of
EUR 100,000.00 each were issued on 19 January 2007. The interest rate was set at 2.75% per year
and the term of the bonds will end on 20 January 2014. Each convertible bond with a nominal
value of EUR 100,000.00 carries subscription rights to 6,811.9891 shares of new bearer common
stock in IMMOFINANZ. The bondholders may exercise their conversion rights at any time be-
tween 1 March 2007 and 9 January 2014 by signing a statement of conversion. Furthermore, the
bondholders have the right to put their entire holdings of convertible bonds or individual bond
certificates prematurely on 19 January 2012 in keeping with a notice period of at least 10 days. The
company is entitled to call the bonds in full but not in part at any time on or after 19 January 2011
in keeping with a minimum notice period of 30 days and a maximum notice period of 90 days
when the price of the IMMOFINANZ share exceeds 130% of the applicable conversion price on
at least 20 trading days within a period of at least 30 trading days, which do not end less than five
trading days before the call announcement.

The extraordinary annual general meeting on 18 June 2001 authorised the Executive Board to issue
up to 150,000 interest-bearing bearer convertible bonds with a nominal value of EUR 1,000.00
each at an issue price of 98% within a period of four years. These convertible bonds may be ex-
changed for shares in the company, in observance of the legal subscription rights of shareholders.
The holders of the convertible bonds received the irrevocable right to exchange the securities at the
end of their term for bearer shares in the company, which carry dividend rights beginning with the
financial year in which the bonds are converted; each bond is convertible into 150 shares.

A total of 100,000 convertible bonds with a nominal value of EUR 1,000.00 each were issued on
31 August 2001 based on this resolution. These convertible bonds carry an interest rate of 4% per
year. In accordance with a resolution of the Executive Board on 30 January 2007 and a resolution
of the Supervisory Board on 31 January 2007, 15 March 2007 was designated as an additional
conversion date. The conversion of 74,050 convertible bonds on 15 March 2007 resulted in the
allocation of 11,480,447 new shares to the former bondholders.

In order to guarantee bondholders the irrevocable right to exchange these securities for shares in
the company, the extraordinary general meeting on 18 June 2001 also authorised a conditional
increase in share capital from EUR 116,152,213.26 by up to EUR 23,359,125.27 through the issue
of up to 22,500,000 shares of bearer stock with zero par value and dividend rights beginning with
the financial year in which the bonds are converted.

On 27 September 2007 the Executive B